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Definitions:

Central Bank: Saudi Central Bank "SAMA".

"Authority": means the Capital Market Authority.

Market: Saudi Stock Exchange "Tadawul".

Company: Nayifat Finance Company.

Board of Directors: The Board of Directors of Nayifat Finance Company.
Corporate Governance: Rules for the company's leadership and guidance that
include mechanisms to regulate the various relations between the Board of
Directors, executive directors, shareholders and stakeholders, by setting special
rules and procedures to facilitate the decision-making process and give it a
transparent and credible character in order to protect the rights of shareholders
and stakeholders and achieve justice, competitiveness and transparency in the
market and business environment.

Shareholders' Assembly: An assembly formed by the company's shareholders
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law and the Company's
Articles of Association.

Executive Member: A member of the Board of Directors who is full-time in the
executive management of the Company and participates in the day-to-day
business of the Company.

Non-Executive Member: A member of the Board of Directors who is not full-
time to manage the Company and does not participate in the day-to-day business
of the Company.

Independent Member: A non-executive board member who enjoys full
independence in his position and decisions, and none of the following symptoms
of independence apply to him:

1. To be the owner of five percent or more of the company's shares or of the shares of
another company from its group or to be related to the person who owns this percentage.
2 - To be related to any of the members of the Board of Directors in the company or in
another company of its group.

3 -To be related to any of the senior executives in the company or in another company
of its group.

4 - To be a member of the Board of Directors of another company from the group of the
company nominated for membership of the Board of Directors.

5 -To have worked or has been working as an employee during the past two years for the
company or another company of its group, or to be the owner of controlling shares with
the company or any party dealing with the company or another company of its group,
such as auditors and major suppliers during the past two years.

6 - To have a direct or indirect interest in the business and contracts made for the
company's account.

7 - To receive sums of money from the company in addition to the membership
remuneration of the Board of Directors or any of its committees exceeding 200,000 riyals
or for 50% of his remuneration in the previous year that it obtains in return for
membership of the Board of Directors or any of its committees, whichever is less.

8 - To participate in a business that would compete with the company, or to trade in one
of the branches of the activity practiced by the company.

9 - He must have spent more than nine consecutive or separate years as a member of the

company's board of directors.
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10- To have a credit relationship in his name or in the name of one of his relatives with
the company exceeding (one million) Saudi riyals.
11- Works and contracts concluded to meet personal needs shall not be considered as an
interest precluding the independence of a member of the Board of Directors, who must
obtain a license from the Ordinary General Assembly, if such works and contracts are
carried out in the same conditions and conditions followed by the company with all
contractors and dealers and are within the company's usual activity, unless the

Nominating Committee deems otherwise.

Executive management (Senior executives): Persons entrusted with
managing the company's day-to-day operations, proposing and implementing
strategic decisions, such as the CEO, his deputies and the Chief Financial Officer.
Related Parties:

1- Affiliates of the company except for companies wholly owned by the
company.

2- Large shareholders in the company.

3- Members of the Board of Directors and senior executives of the company.
4- Members of the boards of directors of the company's affiliates.
5- Members of the boards of directors and senior executives of the company's
major shareholders.

6. Any relatives of the persons referred to in (1, 2, 3 or 5) above.

7. Any other company or establishment controlled by any person referred to in
(1,2,3,5 or6) above.

8. Joint stock companies in which any of the members of the Board of Directors,
senior executives or their relatives owns five percent or more.

9. Companies in which any of the Board members, senior executives or their
relatives are members of the Board of Directors or senior executives thereof.
(Relatives are: parents, grandparents, children and their children, husbands and

wives).

Stakeholders: Anyone who has an interest with the company, such as
employees, creditors, customers, suppliers, and society.
Major Shareholders: Any person who owns (5%) or more of the company's

shares or voting rights.

Controlling share: The ability to influence the actions or decisions of another
person, directly or indirectly, individually or collectively with a relative or

follower, by owning 30% more voting rights in the company.

Administrative Apparatus: The group of individuals who make strategic

decisions, and the Board of Directors of the Company is its administrative body.

Remuneration: Amounts, allowances, profits and the like, periodic or annual
remuneration related to performance, short- or long-term incentive plans, and
any other in-kind benefits, except for reasonable actual expenses and expenses
incurred by the Company on behalf of a member of the Board of Directors for the

purpose of performing his work.

O ‘ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

O w33 A, A0 e 8T T ey ol Aol Aslens) 28Me 43t 0585 ¢, -10
(g9 Jby (G54ke)

cmr G 815¥ e gune AMazY 23L Abiall Jid (e a3 ¥ 11
o5 @ agaally Jlee¥! olal) Laladl &nazll (o pausyd (e Jgwazdl L]
glad¥l ity asdally Jlae¥l sia e 13] Apasdd) lelasdl 2kl
LLid (yess S cplalanlly (uudlaill o gac po 45,401 Lads &1 bogyidl
13 (s el Al A 55 @d Lo coliall 28,41

48,401 Sldae 3)1s) e Iogill ol o (Laladl 5,15¥1) il &,ls)
Glgiy gdaaiall s IS laduaiy sl il ShLAN 148l (i)
JU s

:48Mat) 993 bl LY

A5l JalSIL 385 Lell i, adl e Lagd 38,401 s -1

A8l LS cneabad ] -2

Ay cudand) LS Byl ¥ pudme sliacl -3

A Al 8y 0¥) e sliacl -4

Syl @ OLSI el s danall HLSs By13¥1 (ulle slisel -5
el (5913 0201) @ el sladl polead o Lsy31 51-6

915¢3:02:1) 34l slin pasd ¢l Lple Jlaug ¢y518Lade of 35,8 1 -7
el (6

Otecsaiatd] HUS o 8510¥1 udma sliael (ya 6T Led cllay (&1 2aaludl 28,5 -8
ST gl Al § dnes did Lo o)1

Igsine @l ol opduaiall LS of Lulzell eliacl (e g 058G @I 8,401 -9
Led Opdeaiddl HUS (e ol Lplsl (udme

A add Al of aylall oIS, 4010

z19¥) ceasdsly SNl cmluzdly slua¥l (aldly L¥ Ly 3YL wasy)
(l93ll

el nisl iy ccalalallS (2S, a1 pa delias 4 (e S il | olss]
2eiz=lly ccndyslls

Boa> o1 48,4l el o AST 51 (%5)diud Lo ey oy S el | LS
Led Coguatll

il IS 53T pased Slhly8 of Jladl § ol (e 8yaall e o) Las
%30 Zeas IMlal SN (10 @25 of y® o Laaizma of 13,000 ¢ s tlia pE ol
Ayl § cugiatll Byd> o AST

Jady Azl Shlyal Ogdseny cpdd) o1,8Y) Aegazma 1la¥) Lzl
L I 3Ll 48,801 8510) (udma

Lgiwdl of a9l Loy (LS 3 Loy Ly ¥ ully AL o laisL
Lse Llse gly «do¥ alsbs of Spuald Dpamall Lalaslly (ols¥l dag,l)
oe 4S8l Lozt Gl Wsaall audasll Casylially claadll slidiuwly «gys
lae 2500 (5,40 5)l0¥1 e guiac

(5 - 83)

www.nayifat.com




Ul
NayiFat

1. SECTION ONE: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INTRODUCTION

1.1. PREAMBLE

The company's governance is the rules for the company's leadership and
guidance that include mechanisms to regulate the various relations
between Board of Directors and its committees, executive management,
shareholders and stakeholders, by setting special rules and procedures to
facilitate the decision-making process and give it a transparent and
credible character in order to protect the rights of shareholders and
stakeholders and achieve justice, competitiveness and transparency in the
market and business environment.

The primary objective of the corporate governance regulation is to achieve
sustainability of the increased value that benefits the company's
stakeholders, and to achieve this goal, it is necessary, but not limited to, to
define the principles of appropriate supervision and good management,
and it is important that the principles of governance are clear to all
stakeholders in order to protect their rights and enhance their

participation in the corporate governance process.

1.2. ACCESS, AMENDMENTS AND APPROVAL OF THE CG

The Manual is drafted in compliance with the laws of the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, including the Saudi Central Bank (SAMA) Implementing
Regulations of the law on supervisions of Finance Companies ("SAMA
Regulations”), guidelines issued by the Ministry of Commerce and
Investment (“MCI") the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the
Board of the Capital Market Authority (“CMA” or “Authority”).

The Manual should be adopted by the Board and must be presented to the

General Assembly of Shareholders for review and approval.

The Board shall review the Manual at a minimum once every year to
incorporate necessary amendments and updates as the Board deems
appropriate.

The Manual is to be read in conjunction with the Company's bylaws and
the laws of KSA. In the event of any conflicts between the Manual and the
Company's bylaws and/or any applicable laws, the latter should prevail
over the Manual. Conflict of any of the provisions noted in the Manual
with any existing/future Company documents, if any, should be referred

to the Board Secretary for necessary clarification.

The Manual will be available on the Company’s website for referral

and guidance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

Ol€54d) daSex Joor danda :Jo¥ il 1

deeedd] 11

bl e Jotdd Lezsiy 35,401 8oLal acled (2 35,400 ASy>
Bpdaaidd] 5)153ls laly 5o¥1 Lulma (g Raliell B egais)
fals @lelzly aclsd aag iy (@lall wlrely orealully
Lple 28lually 260 all mlls clasly bl Sl dlee Jud
Ulaall gaaxiy dlall Clasly Grealudl Gsi> Ll Loy
Jlas¥l 2 Gyl § Audlally Loudlislly

Aouill Aolanal) 3t a 45,401 2aSem Ll uladl) Caull
lia Gedxaly (ASyadl 3 Axball Gleal Lo dpitu I 5l
31,891 tosles duan ¢ pumsdl Y JUL U e« 859l cpad e ]l
pa) Ay eSSl (glis 058G 00F il (pa9 cBotael 8y0¥ 19 cslil)
Lles @ o@Sldn 33aTy pedsi> ko> ol o0 Axliall Glxsol

A4S, 401 AaSyo

4,4 Ay A slaiely cbdailly slodlall 1.2
a3 § Loy Lagandl dppall 281l Aalaid Tadg 2l Ablio e
S8 e BLAY allad gogaudl GS clild ) wlell
e Bybiall Apzgtll oolly (" gogadl GSL1 il il sl") Jagoll
W Goudl i (e By0ball S, ad) S iy 3)l=dl 8159

(adl” 512U Gsll 208" el Ll 5LAS)

Al ] Lapads cazmg 8510 udma B (o0 At sleiel camy
Lple 281y Laazr L realuel] s ganll

Jeal ale S JBY1 e By 8 pe 2Dl Aan e 81031 ulma (e camy
Lsolin 81591 udza 8l Lo 2oy &Lyl g Ml as!)

ALl Aalasly 28,4l oLl allaidl o i J) Lo 2t 81,8 ey
oeladll allaidly &I o ylad (6l 3929 Wl B9 Ayagadl &yl
A e 85591 59 o ey cle Jgane Cnilsd (g1 of / 5 4S54
Slaiiue 6T ae A= (3 8ysSUll ST (e 6T (oylad Al g
sl B)1a¥ s o (el ) etz g O A8, Al 2diatine / 3>

Sl

Lell gyl e is ASIY1 Sy 01 adga le Aomlia Znidl 538
o i) Lol iiein g

(6 - 83)

www.nayifat.com




Ul
Nayifat

1.3. OBJECTIVES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL
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The objective of Corporate Governance Framework is to promote the
Company as a strong, viable and competitive entity by creating a strong
control environment and an integrated risk management culture, which
are fully aligned with governing Shariah principles.

CG focuses on the conduct of, and relationships between the Board,

management and the Company’s shareholders. Itis designed to:

a.  Enhancing the role of the Company’s shareholders and facilitating
the exercise of their rights;

b.  Stating the competencies and responsibilities of Board, Committees
and the Executive Management;

c.  Enhancing the role of the Board and the committees and developing
their capabilities to enhance the Company’s decision making
mechanisms;

d. Enhance public reputation through increased transparency and
accountability;

e.  Provide a mechanism of benchmarking of accountability;

f. Assistin detection and prevention of fraud, dishonesty and unethical
behavior;

Monitor management performance and financial performance.
Ensure that the Company has well defined policies, procedures and
processes for risk management and internal control.

The external aspect of corporate governance, on the other hand,

concentrates on relationships between the Company and its stakeholders,

Stakeholders are those individuals or institutions that have an interest in

Nayifat; such an interest may arise through legislation or contract, or by

way of social or geographic relationships. Stakeholders include investors,

butalso employees, creditors, suppliers, consumers, regulatory bodies and

state agencies, and the local community in which Nayifat operates.
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1.4. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DISTRIBUTION OF COMPETENCIES & DUTIES:

Board of

1 Board Secretary / Governance
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Shareholders External Audit
|

Directors

Shariah Risk & Credit Executive
Committee Committee Committee

N&R Audit
Committee Committee

‘ Business / Operational / Support / Control Functions |

The organizational structure of the company defines the responsibilities and
distribution of tasks among the Board of Directors and its committees, and the
executive management, in accordance with best governance practices. It
enhances the efficiency of decision-making, achieves a balance in powers and
authorities, and the Board of Directors is responsible for the overall supervision
of the company's operations and monitoring its affairs, directing its actions in a
manner that preserves its interests and enhances its value. The Board holds
responsibility for its actions even if it delegates some of its powers to
committees, entities, or individuals. In all cases, the board may not issue a
general delegation or one that is not time-limited. The Board also bears the
responsibility of forming committees and the executive management,
organizing how they operate, supervising and overseeing them, verifying their
performance of the assigned tasks, setting clear boundaries for responsibility
and accountability, and adhering to them at all levels of the company. The board
of directors also approves policies, charters, and internal guidelines related to
the work of the board and its committees and all departments and divisions of
the company, which include defining tasks, jurisdictions, and responsibilities,
and regularly reviews and updates them to align with any updates issued by the
Saudi Central Bank, the Capital Market Authority, or other regulatory bodies.
The organizational structure approved by the Board of Directors reflects the
distribution of tasks and competencies. Responsibilities at the executive
management level must be completely separated. The general description of the
aforementioned organizational structure is part of the adopted governance
regulations, and it reflects the supervisory and executive arrangements within
the company. Nayifat Finance Company also maintains an updated detailed
copy of the organizational structure among its internal documents, which is
periodically reviewed, updated, and approved by the Board of Directors, in
accordance with the regulatory requirements issued by relevant supervisory
authorities.

* The details of the tasks and responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Section Two), its
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committees (Section Three), the executive management (Section Four), and the

mechanism of supervision and control (Section Five) of this regulation will be reviewed. *
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2. SECTION TWO: NAYIFAT’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS MANUAL

2.1. INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors approves the Company's Governance Regulations,
which include the Board of Directors’ Manual, and each of them
accurately defines the role, powers, responsibilities and framework of the
Board of Directors, and this guide is prepared taking into account the
Company's Articles of Association, the Saudi Central Bank Regulations, the
Companies Law, the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the
Capital Market Authority and the best leading practices, without
contradicting them.

2.2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

With reference to the main principles of governance issued by the Saudi
Central Bank, the company must have an effective Board of Directors
whose role is to guide the company’s operations in a way that preserves
its interests and enhances its value. The Board is responsible for the
company’s activities, even if it delegates some of its powers to committees,
entities, or individuals. In all cases, the Board may not issue a general or
open-ended delegation. The Board must do the following:

1. Form the executive management, organize its operations, monitor

and supervise it, and ensure it performs its assigned tasks.

2. Develop the company’s main plans, policies, strategies, and
objectives; supervise their implementation; and review them
periodically.

3. Ensure the soundness and financial solvency of the company and

maintain effective relationships with regulatory authorities.

4.  Establish clear boundaries for responsibility and accountability at all
levels within the company, ensuring complete separation of

responsibilities at the executive level.

5. The financial institution’s organizational structure must define
responsibilities and task distribution between the Board and
executive management in line with best governance practices to
enhance decision-making efficiency and balance powers and
authorities. To achieve this, the Board shall:

a. Approve and develop internal policies related to company operations,
including defining tasks, responsibilities, and authorities assigned to
various organizational levels.

b. Approve a detailed written policy specifying the powers delegated to
executive management, clarifying each power, the execution method,
and the delegation period. It may also request periodic reports from

executive management regarding the exercise of delegated powers.
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C.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Identify matters that remain under the Board’s authority.

Ensure the adequacy of human and financial resources to achieve the

company’s main goals and fulfill its obligations.

Ensure the presence and development of effective compliance,
internal audit, and risk management units, verify their independence
from business units, and ensure they are adequately resourced and

that staff are trained and capable.

Establish a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies
suited to the company’s nature and size, oversee their
implementation, and review them annually. Risk appetite should

align with the company’s strategy and capital planning.

Ensure an effective, objective, and systematic employee performance
evaluation system is in place at all levels, especially executive
management, which must be evaluated based on long-term

performance, not just a single year.

Select senior executives and ensure an appropriate succession plan

for qualified replacements with the required skills.

Inform the Central Bank in writing of any penalties imposed by any
supervisory, regulatory, or judicial authority that may impact the
company’s operations, within ten business days from the date of the
penalty.

Ensure the independence of internal and external auditors and the
accuracy and integrity of information and data required to be
disclosed in accordance with disclosure and transparency
requirements.
Be aware of key risks that could affect the company and its
subsidiaries, and exercise appropriate oversight over those
subsidiaries, considering their legal independence and governance
requirements.

Develop a clear, written policy for handling actual or potential
conflicts of interest that may impact the performance of Board
members, executive management, or other employees. The policy
must include, at a minimum:

Emphasis on the need for Board members, senior executives, and
employees to avoid conflicts of interest with the company and handle
such cases according to relevant laws and regulations.

Examples of conflict-of-interest situations relevant to the company's

nature.
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C.

15.

16.

d.

17.

18.

Clear procedures for disclosing conflicts of interest and obtaining
necessary licenses or approvals.

A commitment to continuously disclose any potential or actual
conflict of interest.

Abstaining from voting or participating in decisions where a conflict
of interest exists.

Clear procedures for transactions with related parties, which must be
conducted on commercial terms. If such a transaction equals or
exceeds 1% of the company’s total annual revenue (based on the
latest audited financials), it must be publicly disclosed and reported

to the Central Bank without delay.

The Board remains responsible even when company operations are
outsourced. It must understand the risks involved in outsourcing and
ensure such operations comply with relevant Central Bank

regulations.

Annually assess:
Each Board member’s performance (using an external evaluator
enhances objectivity).
The effectiveness of the Board's operating procedures, structure, and
composition, identifying weaknesses and implementing needed
changes.
The effectiveness of governance policies, procedures, and practices,
determining whether improvements or changes are needed.
Evaluation results should support continuous improvement efforts
and be shared with the Central Bank if necessary.
In line with relevant Central Bank regulations, ensure the existence
and effectiveness of policies and procedures, including but not
limited to:
IT governance and cybersecurity policies and procedures.
A policy defining professional behavior and business ethics.
Apolicy outlining the whistleblowing mechanism and protection for
whistleblowers.
Policies and procedures for resolving complaints and disputes
between the company and stakeholders.

Policies and procedures to safeguard information confidentiality.

Approve an employee compensation policy, including at minimum
fixed rewards, performance-linked rewards, and equity-based

rewards.
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19. Ensure the accuracy and integrity of annual and quarterly financial

statements and approve them before publication.

20. Establish an appropriate number of committees and approve their
charters except for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, which must be approved by the General
Assembly. Each charter should define the committee’s tasks,
duration, scope of work, granted powers, responsibilities, and the
Board's oversight mechanism. The Board must ensure that
committee members diligently fulfill their roles.

21. Disclose in the Board's annual report the committees it has
established, their scope of work, and the names of their members.
The Board Chair must provide the Central Bank with a list of these
committees, their functions, procedures, and members.

22. Ensure the company adopts corporate social responsibility (CSR)
programs aligned with the CSR policy approved by the General
Assembly. These programs should support social projects, promote
financial literacy, and meet local credit needs by providing loans and
facilities for productive businesses and innovative products that
support economic development without harming the company’s

solvency or stakeholders.

23. Ensure the company's services meet societal needs and are offered at
fair costs. The company should take the initiative to support and

encourage small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs).

In line with Article 21 of the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by

CMA, and without prejudice to the competencies of the General Assembly

as per the Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations and the

Company’s bylaws, the Board of Directors shall have the widest powers to

manage the Company and direct its business in order to achieve its

objectives, and the following shall be included in the functions and
competencies of the Board of Directors:

1. lay down the plans, policies, strategies and main objectives of the
Company; supervising their implementation and reviewing them
periodically and ensuring that the human and financial resources
required to fulfill them are available including:

a. setting a comprehensive strategy for the Company, key business
plans and policies and mechanisms of the risk management and
review and guide them

b.  determining the most appropriate capital structure for the Company,
its strategies and financial objectives, and approving all kinds of

estimated budgets;
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C.

overseeing the main capital expenditures of the Company and the
acquisition or disposal of assets;

setting performance indicators, and monitoring the implementation
thereof and the overall performance of the Company;

reviewing and approving the organizational and human resources
structures of the Company on a periodic basis;

ensuring that the financial and human resources required for
achieving the objectives and main plans of the Company are
available;

setrulesand procedures forinternal control and generally overseeing
them, including:

Developing a written policy to remedy actual and potential conflicts
of interest scenarios for each of the Board members, the Executive
Management, and the shareholders. This includes misuse of the
Company’s assets and facilities and the mismanagement resulting
from transactions with Related Parties;

ensuring the integrity of the financial and accounting rules, including
rules relating to the preparation of financial reports;

ensuring the implementation of appropriate control procedures for
risk assessment and management by generally forecasting the risks
that the Company may encounter and creating an environment
which is aware of the culture of risk management at the Company
level and disclosing such risks transparently to the Stakeholders and
parties related to the Company;

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
procedures on an annual basis.

Setting forth specific and explicit policies, standards and procedures
for membership in the Board, without prejudice to the mandatory
provisions of CMA CG Regulations, and implementing them
following approval by the General Assembly.

Developing a written policy that regulates the relationship with

Stakeholders pursuant to the provisions of CMA CG Regulations.

Setting policies and procedures to ensure the Company’s compliance
with the laws and regulations and the Company’s obligation to
disclose material information to shareholders and Stakeholders, and
ensuring the compliance of the Executive Management with these
policies and procedures.

Supervising the management of the Company’s finances, its cash
flows as well as its financial and credit relationships with third

parties.
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10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

providing recommendations to the Extraordinary General Assembly
as to what it deems appropriate regarding the following:

increasing or decreasing the share capital of the Company;
Dissolving the Company before the end of its term as specified in its
bylaws or deciding the continuity of the Company.

providing recommendation to the Ordinary General Assembly as to
what it deems appropriate regarding:

using the consensual reserve of the Company, if such has been
formed by the Extraordinary General Assembly and has not been
allocated to a specific purpose;

Forming additional financial allocations or reserves for the Company;
The method of distributing the net profits of the Company.
Preparing the Company's interim and annual financial statements
and approving them before publishing them.

Preparing the Board report and approving it before publishing it.
Ensuring the accuracy and integrity of the data and information
which must be disclosed pursuant to the applicable policies and
systems in respect of disclosure and transparency.

Developing  effective  communication  channels  allowing
shareholders to continuously and periodically review the various
aspects of the Company's businesses as well as any material
developments.

Forming specialized committees of the Board pursuant to resolutions
that shall specify the term, powers and responsibilities of such
committees as well as the manner used by the Board to monitor such
committees. Such resolutions shall also specify the names of the
members and their duties, rights and obligations and shall evaluate
the performance and activities of these committees and their
members.

Specifying the types of remunerations granted to the Company's
employees, such as fixed remunerations, remunerations linked to
performance and remunerations in the form of shares without
prejudice to the Regulatory Rules and Procedures issued pursuant to
the Companies Law related to Listed Joint Stock Companies.
notifying the Ordinary General Assembly when convened of the
businesses and contracts in which any Board member has a direct or
indirect interest; the notification shall include the information
provided by the member of the Board as per paragraph (14) of Article

(28) of these Regulations, and shall be accompanied by a special

report of the Company's external auditor.
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16. Setting the values and standards that govern the work at the

Company.

2.3. QUALIFICATIONS OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Members should be qualified to carry out the work entrusted to them,
have a clear understanding of the role required of them, and the ability to
make decisions impartially and objectively without any external influence
from inside or outside the company, and in particular the following:

1. The CVs of members should be publicly available, so that stakeholders
can measure their competence and ability to carry out their tasks

effectively.

2. The member must be of professional competence and have various
practical and administrative skills and experience, and appropriate
personal qualities, especially honesty and integrity, in addition to the
following:

a. Leadership: Leadership skills that enable him to delegate powers,
which motivates performance, applies best practices in effective

management and disseminates professional values and ethics.

b. Competence: reflected by the level of education, experience, skills and

willingness to continue learning.

c. Guidance: Technical and administrative capabilities, speed in decision-
making, understanding of technical requirements related to workflow,
and the ability to strategic direction, long-term planning and a clear future

vision.

d. Financial Knowledge: Read, understand and understand financial

statements and reports and ratios used to measure performance.

e. Health fitness: He should not have a health impediment that hinders
him from exercising his duties and competencies.

3. The member must possess the following characteristics:

a. Honesty: His relationship with the Company must be a sincere
professional relationship, disclosing to it any relevant information before
executing any transaction or contract with the Company or one of its
subsidiaries.

b. Loyalty: Avoid transactions involving a conflict of interest, and ensure
that the transactions are fair, and that they are made for the benefit of the
company and stakeholders.

c. Care and attention: Perform his duties and responsibilities effectively,
and ensure that all information that would ensure that the decisions taken
are in the interest of the company, and for this purpose he shall be

responsible for the following:
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®  Attend Board meetings regularly, not be absent without an excuse,
and prepare for and participate in them effectively, including

asking relevant questions and discussing with executives

® Decisions are taken based on complete information and in good
faith, and the member is not exempt from responsibility if he
abstains from voting without clarifying his opinion on the decision
in question.
® Develop knowledge in the company's activities and other related
fields
®  Ensure thatimportant and key topics are included in the agenda of
the Board
®  The executive member provides comprehensive information to the
Board upon request.
2.4. FORMATION, APPOINTMENT AND BOARD AFFAIRS
1. The Company's Articles of Association shall determine the number of
members of the Board in proportion to its size and the nature of its
business, taking into account the following:
a. The number of members shall not be less than three.
b. The number of independent members shall not be less than two

members or one-third of the members of the Board, whichever is more.

c. The number of executive members should not exceed two.

2. The General Assembly shall elect the members of the Board for the
period stipulated in the Company's Articles of Association, provided that
it does not exceed three years, and they may be re-elected unless the
Company's Articles of Association provide otherwise.

3. The procedures for nominating and selecting the members of the Board
shall be specific and clear, taking into account the diversity of experience,
qualifications and qualities.

4. Members shall choose a non-executive member to preside over the
Board and another as its deputy, taking into account that the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman shall not exercise any of the functions of the Executive
Management.

5. The written no-objection of the Central Bank must be obtained before
nominating any member of the Board and its committees, or appointing
any of the occupants of leadership positions, in accordance with the
relevant instructions of the Central Bank, and the Central Bank must be
notified in writing upon acceptance of the resignation/departure from
work/termination of the services of any employee in leadership positions,

or the termination of the membership of any member of the Board and its
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committees, or the absence of the independence of the independent
member, within five working days.
The Company shall also notify CMA with the names of the members of the
Board of Directors and their membership qualities within five working
days from the date of commencement of the Board of Directors session or
from the date of their appointment — whichever is earlier — and any
changes to their membership within five working days from the date of
the changes.

6. Amember of the Board may not be a member of the Board of Directors

of a similar financial institution operating in the Kingdom.

7.A'member may not be a member of the Board of Directors of more than
five joint stock companies listed on the Exchange at the same time, and in
the event of a conflict of interest, the member shall be subject to a conflict
of interest policy.

8. It is preferable that the member's service does not exceed more than

twelve continuous or sporadic years.

9. Whoever wishes to nominate himself for membership of the Board shall
disclose to the Board and the General Assembly any cases of conflict of
interest:

a. The existence of a direct orindirectinterestin the business and contracts
made for the account of the company for which he wishes to nominate for
the Board of Directors.

b. Participation in a business that would compete with the company or its

competition in one of the branches of activity it engages.

10. Each member shall inform the Board immediately upon becoming
aware of any interest he has, directly or indirectly, in the business and
contracts concluded for the Company's account, and the obligation not to
participate in the voting on the resolution taken in this regard.

11. Each member shall maintain the confidentiality of the company's
information, and shall not disclose any information found on it through
his membership in the Board to third parties or to the company's

shareholders, unless during the general assembly meetings.

12. Each member must be provided with an induction program explaining
the company's mission, strategic objectives and activities, and each
member must be provided with a memorandum explaining the tasks and
responsibilities involved in his membership.

13. Members shall carry out the tasks and responsibilities entrusted to
them through clear and appropriate procedures, and the Board shall
review the effectiveness of these procedures on an ongoing basis, identify

weaknesses and make the necessary changes when needed.
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14. Members shall be familiar with the laws, regulations and instructions
related to the company's business, and shall be keen to follow up on
developments in this regard.

2.5. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board and for

ensuring that it successfully discharges its overall responsibility for the

Company as a whole. According to the Article 22 of Nayifat Bylaws the

functions and responsibilities of the Chairman shall be to preside and

head Board of Directors meeting and General Assembly meeting, to call
for Board of Directors’ meetings and General Assembly meetings, to have
the casting vote in case of tie in Boards of Directors voting, to represent
the company in its relationships with others; with all governmental sector,
private sector, Shari‘a courts, Judicial bodies, Board of Grievance and all
judicial committees inside the Kingdom and abroad. In addition, the

Chairman is expected to fulfill the following responsibilities:

a. Direct the Board discussions to effectively use time to address the
critical issues facing the Company.

b.  Ensure that the Board provides guidance in setting up the vision,
aims, strategies and policies of the Company and continually
monitors the steps taken and success in achieving these strategies.

c.  Ensure that Directors are enabled and encouraged to play their role
in the meetings and have adequate opportunities to express their
views.

d.  Ensure that Directors are provided with sufficient and timely
information prior to the meeting and to ensure that minutes properly
reflect decisions made at the meetings.

e. ensure that the Board members obtain complete, clear, accurate and
non-misleading information in due course;

f. ensure that the Board effectively discusses all fundamental issues in
due course;

g encourage the Board members to effectively perform their duties in
order to achieve the interests of the Company;

h. ensure that there are actual communication channels with
shareholders and conveying their opinions to the Board;

i. encourage constructive relationships and effective participation
between the Board and the Executive Management on the one hand,
and the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the
other hand, and creating a culture that encourages constructive
criticism;

j-  prepareagendas of the Board meetings, taking into consideration any

matters raised by Board members or the external auditor and consult
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with the Board members and the Chief Executive Officer upon
preparing the Board's agenda; and

k. Convene periodic meetings with the Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of any executive officers of the Company.

I. notify the Ordinary General Assembly while convening of the
businesses and contracts in which any Board member has direct or
indirect interest, the notification shall include the information
provided by the member to the Board as per paragraph 14 of Article
28 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations; this notification shall
be accompanied by a special report of the Company's external
auditor.

m. Uphold the Corporate Governance Framework.

The Chairman also has an important responsibility to establish a healthy

working relationship between the Board and the CEO. He will be the

major point of contact between the Board and the CEO and shall be kept
fully informed of key issues by the CEO on all matters, which may be of
interest to the Board.

The Board shall conduct an annual review of the Chairman’s performance

to ensure that the Chairman is providing the best leadership for the

Company in the long and short term.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will assist the Board to

establish criteria for evaluation of the Chairman'’s performance and such

criteria shall be communicated to the Chairman.

In reference to the main principles of governance issued by the Saudi

Central Bank, and without prejudice to the competencies of the Board of

Directors, the Chairman of the Board shall assume the following tasks:

a. Leading the Board and supervising the effectiveness of its work and the

effective performance of its functions.

b. Ensure that all members of the Board of Directors have timely, complete,

clear and correct information.

c. Representing the company before third parties in accordance with the

relevant laws, regulations and instructions, and the company's articles of

association.

d. Encourage effective participation between the Board and the executive

management.

e. Supervise the preparation of the agenda of the meetings of the Board of

Directors, taking into account any point raised by a member of the Board

orthe auditor, and consult with the members of the Board when preparing

the agenda of the Board.
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2.6. VICE CHAIRMAN:

The Board of Directors shall appoint from among its members a Vice-

Chairman, who shall have supervisory roles without exercising executive

functions, as follows:

1. The Vice President has a pivotal role in ensuring smooth business

continuity in the absence of the Chairman, while maintaining the

independence of the Board from the executive management.

2. In the event that the Chairman of the Board of Directors is unable to

assume his responsibilities and roles for any reasons attributable to force

majeure, the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors shall temporarily
assume his behalf.

3. The Vice-Chairman shall preside over the meetings of the Board of

Directors or the General Assemblies in the absence or inability of the

Chairman to attend.

4. Advising the Chair and members on best practices.

5. Attend on behalf of the Chairman of the Board in important events and

official forums.

6. Represent the Company before regulators or external parties when

needed.

7. Provide recommendations regarding the general strategies of the

company without interfering in the executive management.

2.7. TASKS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD MEMBERS:

Each member of the Board shall, being a Board member, perform the

following tasks and duties:

1. Providing proposals to develop the strategy of the Company.

2. Monitoring the performance of the Executive Management and the
extent to which it has achieved the objectives and purposes of the
Company.

3. Reviewing reports related to the performance of the Company.

4. Ensuringthe integrity and impartiality of the financial statements and
information of the Company

5. Ensuring that the financial control and risk management systems are
sound.

6. Determining the appropriate level of remunerations of the members
of the Executive Management.

7. Expressing opinions as to the appointment and dismissal of members
of the Executive Management.

8. Participating in developing the succession and replacement plans of
executive positions within the Company

9. Complying fully with the provisions of the Companies Law, Capital

Market Law, their implementing regulations, the relevant regulations
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

and the bylaws when performing his/her duties as a member of the
Board and abstaining from taking or participating in any action that
constitute mismanagement of the Company’s affairs.

Attending the Board and the General Assembly meetings, and not
being absent except for legitimate excuse of which the chairman of
the Board shall be notified by prior notice, or for emergency reasons.
Allocating sufficient time to fulfill his/her responsibilities and
preparing for the Board and its committees meetings and effectively
participating therein, including raising relevant questions and
carrying discussions with the Senior Executives.

Studying and analyzing all information related to the matters looked
into by the Board before expressing an opinion on the same.
Enabling other Board members to express their opinions freely, and
encouraging the Board to deliberate on the subjects and obtain the
views of the competent members of the Company’s Executive
Management and others, when necessary.

Notifying the Board fully and immediately of any interest, either
direct or indirect, in the businesses and contracts that are executed
for the Company's account, the notification shall include the nature
and extent of such interest, the names of concerned persons, and the
expected benefit to be obtained directly or indirectly from interest
whether financial or non- financial. The concerned member shall
abstain from voting on any decisions issued in connection therewith
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Law, the Capital
Market Law and their implementing regulations.

Notifying the Board fully and immediately of his/her participation,
directly or indirectly, in any businesses that may compete with the
Company or lead to competing with the Company, directly or
indirectly, in respect of any of its activities, in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Law, the Capital Market Law and their
implementing regulations.

Refraining from disclosing or announcing any secrets he/she came
across through his/her membership in the Board to any shareholder
of the Company, unless such disclosure is made during the meetings
of the General Assembly, or to a third party, in pursuance with the
provisions of the Companies Law, the Capital Market Law and their
implementing regulations.

Working on the basis of complete information, in good faith and with
the necessary care and diligence for the interest of the Company and

all shareholders.
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18. Recognizing his/her duties, roles and responsibilities arising from the
membership.

19. Developinghis/her knowledge in the field of the Company's business
and activities and in the related financial, commercial and industrial
fields.

20. Resigning from the membership of the Board if he/she is unable to
fully fulfill his/her duties in the Board.

2.8. DUTIES OF THE INDEPENDENT MEMBER

The independent board member must be able to perform their duties,

express their opinions, and vote on decisions objectively and impartially,

which assists the board in making sound decisions that contribute to the
company's interests, and they must actively participate in the following
tasks:

1. Expressing his/her independent opinion in respect of strategic issues
and the Company’s policies and performance and appointing
members of the Executive Management.

2. Ensuring that the interest of the Company and its shareholders are
taken into account and given priority in case of any conflicts of
interest.

3. Overseeing the development of the Company’s Corporate
Governance rules, and monitoring the implementation of the rules by
the Executive Management.

4. An Independent Director of the Board shall make every effort to
attend all meetings in which important and material decisions
affecting the position of the Company are made.

2.9. THE BOARD’S SECRETARY

1. The Board shall appoint a secretary from among its members or
others, and determine his remuneration, duration, and conditions to
be met therein, including holding a university degree in law, finance,
accounting or management - or its equivalent - with at least three
years of relevant practical experience, and in the absence of a
university degree in these disciplines, he must have at least five years
of relevant practical experience.

2. The Secretary shall be responsible of all secretarial work of the Board,
arrange for the Board’s meetings, prepare the meeting’s agenda and
presentation and forward them to the Board’s members, maintain all
Board’s documents including memos, minutes of meetings,
resolutions and correspondences and shall communicate the Board’s

resolutions and directions to the concerned parties in the Company.
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3.

The Secretary shall confirm the quorum at the beginning of each
meeting and shall provide the Chairman with the absent member’s
names and reasons for their absence, if provided.

The Secretary of the Board shall perform his responsibilities and

competencies upon the direction of the Chairman of the Board, and

may not be removed except by a decision of the Board, and his
responsibilities and competencies shall include, in particular, the
following:

a. documenting the Board meetings and preparing minutes
therefore, which shall include the discussions and deliberations
carried during such meetings, as well as the place, date, times on
which such meetings commenced and concluded; and recording
the decisions of the Board and voting results and retaining them
in a special and organized register, and including the names of
the attendees and any reservations they expressed (if any), Such
minutes shall be signed by all of the attending members;

b. retaining the reports submitted to the Board and the reports
prepared by it;

c.  providing the Board members with the agenda of the Board
meeting and related worksheets, documents and information
and any additional information, related to the topics included in
the agenda items, requested by any Board member;

d. ensuring that the Board members comply with the procedures
approved by the Board;

e. notifying the Board members of the dates of the Board'’s
meetings within sufficient time prior to the date specified for the
meeting;

f. presenting the draft minutes to the Board members to provide
their opinions on them before signing the same;

g.  ensuring that the Board members receive, fully and promptly, a
copy the minutes of the Board's meetings as well as the
information and documents related to the Company;

h.  coordinating among the Board members;

i.  regulating the disclosure register of the Board and Executive
Management as per Article 89 of CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations;

j- Providing assistance and advice to the Board members.

k. The Secretary of the Board may not be dismissed except
pursuant to a decision of the Board.

I. The Board must specify the conditions that the secretary must

meet, provided that they include at least one of the following:
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m. He/she holds a bachelor degree in law, finance, accounting or

administration or their equivalent, and has relevant practical
experience of not less than three years;
n. He/she has relevant practical experience of not less than five
years.
2.10. BOARD MEETINGS ORGANIZATION AND MINUTES
Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and its Implementing
Regulations, the Board of Directors shall hold at least four meetings per
year with one meeting every three months, to exercise its duties and
responsibilities effectively, in addition to holding them when needed, and
it is preferable that the non-executive and independent members of the
Board hold closed meetings without the presence of the members of the
Executive Board for at least one meeting per year.
In accordance with Article 24 of the Company's Articles of Association, the
Board of Directors shall meet at the invitation of its Chairman or at the
request of one of its members. The invitation to the meeting shall be sent
to each member of the Board at least five days prior to the date of the
meeting accompanied by its agenda and the necessary documents and
information, unless circumstances require an emergency meeting, the
invitation may be sent with the necessary agenda, documents and

information within a period of less than five days.

The meeting of the Board shall not be valid unless attended by half of the
members of the Board of Directors (in person or on behalf of), taking into
account that the number of attendees shall not be less than three, unless
the Company's Articles of Association provide for a larger number, and all
decisions shall be taken based on the vote of the members and the
principle of majority, and in the event of a tie votes, the side with which
the Chairman voted shall prevail.

The members of the Board shall attend the meetings of the Board regularly
- this may be using technical means - and not be absent from them except
with a legitimate excuse notified to the Chairman of the Board in advance,
and in the event that the member does not participate in three meetings
per year without an excuse that requires it, another member shall be
replaced by him.

Atthe beginning of each year, the Board shall set its schedule of meetings
during the year and a specific timetable for receiving reports from
committees and internal and external auditors, and shall ensure that the
mechanism for preparing, collecting and submitting reports is sound and
consistent with the approved internal policy, including presenting them to

the Board on time.
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The Attendance of Board meetings, and dealing with cases of irregular

attendance by members shall be organized.

2.11. REMARKS OF THE BOARD MEMBERS

a. If any member of the Board has any remarks in respect of the
performance of the Company or any of the matters presented and
which was not resolved in the Board meeting, such remarks shall be
recorded and the procedures taken or to be taken by the Board in
connection therewith must be set forth in the minutes of the Board
meeting.

b. Ifamember of the Board expresses an opinion differs from the Board
resolution, such opinion must be recorded in detail in the minutes of
the Board meeting.

c. If a member of the Board resigns and has observations on the
performance of the Company, he shall submit a written statement to
the Chairman of the Board, and the statement shall be presented to
the rest of the Board members, with a copy of it provided to the
Central Bank.

2.12. THE AGENDA OF BOARD MEETINGS

a. The Board approves the agenda as soon as the Board meeting is
convened. In the event that any member of the Board of Directors
objects to the agenda of the meeting or any of its items, such
objection shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting, and in all
cases the agenda of the meeting of the Board of Directors may not be
changed during that meeting, unless all members of the Board of
Directors are present at that meeting and give their consent to change
the agenda items.

b.  Each member of the Board is entitled to propose additional items to
the agenda.

2.13. MINUTES OF MEETINGS

The Board shall prepare minutes of its meetings that include the place of

the meeting, its date, the time of its start and end, the names of those

present and non-present and invited from outside the Board, whether the
invitee is an external party such as the external auditor or an internal party
such as the financial director, and a statement of the discussions and
deliberations that took place, and the reservations expressed - if any - with
an explanation of the reasons, and the minutes must be signed by all
members present and the secretary, and documented with the decisions
and voting results, and kept in a special and organized register, and
modern technology may be used to sign and prove deliberations and

decisions and transcription.
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2.14. EXERCISING THE COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD

a- The Board shall exercise its competencies and duties to lead the
Company within a framework of effective and prudent controls that allow
assessing and managing risks and limiting and mitigating their effects.

b- the Board may, within the scope of its competencies, delegate to one or
more of its members or committees or a third party the performance of a
specific function or functions.

c- The Board shall develop an internal policy that explains the procedures
of the Board activities and aims at encouraging its members to work
effectively to fulfill their obligations towards the Company.

d- The Board shall organize its activities and allocate sufficient time to
perform the duties and responsibilities assigned to it, including preparing
for Board and committees meetings and ensuring the coordination,
recording and retaining of the minutes of its meetings.

2.15. END OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' TERM OR RETIREMENT OF ITS MEMBERS:

1. The Board of Directors shall convene the Ordinary General Assembly
well before the end of its session to elect a Board of Directors for a new
term. If the election cannot be held and the current Board term ends, its
members shall continue to perform their duties until the election of a
Board of Directors for a new term, provided that the term of continuation
of the outgoing members of the Board shall not exceed ninety days from
the date of the end of the Board session, and the Board of Directors shall
take the necessary measures to elect a Board of Directors to replace it
before the expiry of the continuity period specified in this paragraph.

2.If the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors retire, they shall
convene the Ordinary General Assembly to electa new Board of Directors,
and the retirement shall not take effect until the election of the new Board,
provided that the term of continuation of the retired Board shall not
exceed (one hundred and twenty) days from the date of such retirement,
and the Board of Directors shall take the necessary measures to elect a
Board of Directors to replace it before the expiry of the continuity period
specified in this paragraph.

3. Amember of the Board of Directors may retire from the membership of
the Board by a written notification addressed to the Chairman of the
Board, and if the Chairman of the Board retires, the notification shall be
addressed to the rest of the members of the Board and the Secretary of the
Board, and the retirement shall be effective - in both cases - from the date
specified in the notification. In the event that a member of the Board of
Directors resigns and has observations on the performance of the

Company, he must submit a written statement thereof to the Chairman of
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the Board of Directors, and this statement must be presented to the
members of the Board of Directors.

4. If the position of one of the members of the Board of Directors of the
Company becomes vacant due to his death or retirement and this vacancy
does not result in a breach of the conditions necessary for the validity of
the meeting of the Board due to the lack of the number of its members
from the minimum stipulated in the Articles of Association or the
Company's Articles of Association, the Board may appoint, temporarily, to
the vacant position a person who has experience and sufficiency, provided
that he shall be informed of this by the Commercial Register, as well as the
Authority, within (fifteen) days from the date of appointment, and that the
appointment shall be presented to the Ordinary General Assembly at the
first meeting. to her, and the appointed member shall complete the term
of his predecessor.

5. If the necessary conditions for the validity of the convening of the Board
of Directors are not met due to the lack of the number of its members from
the minimum stipulated in the Articles of Association or in the Company's
Articles of Association, the rest of the members shall convene the Ordinary
General Assembly within (sixty) days to elect the necessary number of
members.
6. In the event that a board of directors is not elected for a new term or
completes the necessary number of board members in accordance with
paragraphs 1,2 and 5 of this Article, any interested party may request the
competent judicial authority to appoint from among those with
experience and competence and in the number it deems appropriate to
supervise the management of the company and call the general assembly
to convene within ninety days to elect a new board of directors or
complete the necessary number of board members, as the case may be, or
that The company is required to be dissolved.
7- In accordance with Articles 68 and 70 of the Companies Law, the
membership of the Board of Directors shall end upon the expiry of the
term of appointment or resignation, and the General Assembly may, upon
the recommendation of the Board of Directors, terminate the membership
of any members who are absent from attending three consecutive
meetings or five separate meetings during their term of office without an
acceptable excuse. And the Ordinary General Assembly may, at any time,
remove all or any of the members of the Board of Directors even if the
Company's Articles of Association provide otherwise, without prejudice to
the right of the dismissed member to hold the Company liable if the
removal is carried out without acceptable justification or at an

inopportune time.
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8- Upon termination of the membership of a member of the Board of
Directors by any means of termination, the Company shall notify the Saudi
Central Bank and the Capital Market Authority and announce in the Saudi
Exchange immediately specifying the reasons for such termination.
VALIDITY OF THE RESIGNATION

Resignation of a Director will take effect from the time itis communicated

to the Board, or any other agreed time.

2.16. DIRECTOR ORIENTATION AND CONTINUING TRAINING

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 37 “Training” - Guiding Article)
The Company shall pay adequate attention to the training and preparation
of the Board members, committee members, and the Executive
Management, and shall develop the necessary programs required for the
same, taking the following into account:

1- Preparing programs for the recently-appointed Board members and
Executive Management to familiarise them with the progress of the
Company's business and activities, particularly the following:

a. the strategy and objectives of the Company;

b. the financial and operational aspects of the Company’s activities;

c. the obligations of the Board members and their duties, responsibilities
and rights;

d. the duties and competencies of the committees of the Board.

2) developing the necessary mechanisms for Board members and the
Executive Management to continuously enroll in training programs and
courses in order to develop their skills and knowledge in the fields related
to the activities of the Company.

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 37 “Providing Members with
Information”)

The Executive Management of the Company shall provide the Board
members. the Non-Executive Directors in particular, and the committees
of the Company with all of the necessary information, details, documents
and records, provided that they shall be complete, clear, correct and non-
misleading, in due course to enable them to perform their duties and
obligations.

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 39 “The Assessment”- Guiding
Article)

1- The Board shall develop, based on the proposal of the nomination
committee, the necessary mechanisms to annually assess the
performance of the Board, its members and committees and the Executive
Management using key performance indicators linked to the extent to
which the strategic objectives of the Company have been achieved, the

quality of the risk management and the efficiency of the internal control

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

Lol Brbo o Aanyle G By10Y1 Gulzme @ suine Tugune L) wic -8

Ulanwd| ol

1 ady @l ol By0¥1 (udame J) L) By (10 gunall Alatul gyud
e Bite

ey petlly coyunl|.2.16

37851 AU Bgd! Wi oy §yaliad!l S adl AaSgo 2t Lads)
(Al fse] B3ke — "yl

oedzma clael Jaaliy cupun GSI1 alexadl 3] 35,801 e caat,
e Lo Blel o po LIS A gmalall g puiuaiad] 8yl 5¥19 3,153
Luiasall 8,59l oLl slacly 5,591 ulzme sLacy moly slue) -1
o Lo Lol Lo iiils 38,401 Jae oy cinyaill (i cpigall

AT RVPR LYW - F O

Al Aaad¥ Al adly W colesdl o

5 leloganas pealeas 8)15¥ (il slianel bl .z
Lelolaisls 45,401 ol ales

515¥19 8)1o¥) Lulzme el (o S Jsumdd Laplll Sl aung -2
bl Auadd (o0 ¢ patuns Sy Aty Sily909 el (e Apdianall
8,4 alasal 453all l3 LRl § widylans

38 5alll (AW Bgudl diea oy Byoliall SIS AT 2aSgo A Lads)
("claglally sl wgy”

eliacls |9 s sliacel w933 48,400 Bpdpaiall 8y0¥1 e orany
Lledly Slaglall ey S8 plady Lot dogy Gl al
Al Amiming Axinlgy Ual 985 O e Aol cldly 38Ul
P PRV FES PPN U IOt ENIOM I TREN- 1N [ B PR VT

39 8ol AU &gl diea (e B abiadl olSp il daSga AU Lids)

(Aol lu] 3ok — "puadl”
LY B ol Al B A5 e £y (81 5Y e pny -1
Ligiee Bganall 3)\5¥1g diloedy diliacly 5,191 oo 1] @t Lap!
JERPORE 1VEN (R VORI AR { REN 9.1 VR NES SAR

Budos
A1) 208,01 Aelas] 8 LSy Lokl 5,15) 8929 AS,dd) Ause sl L]

alaa¥l

(28 - 83)

www.nayifat.com

Version




Ol
NayifFat

systems, among others, provided that weaknesses and strengths shall be

identified and a solution shall be proposed for the same in the best
interests of the Company.

2- The procedures of performance assessment shall be in writing and
clearly stated and disclosed to the Board members and parties concerned
with the assessment.

3-The performance assessment shall entail an assessment of the skills and
experiences of the Board, identification of the weaknesses and strengths
of the Board and shall attempt to resolve such weaknesses using the
available methods, such as nominating competent professional staff able
to improve the performance of the Board. The performance assessment
shall also entail the assessment of the mechanisms of the Board's activities
in general.

4- The individual assessment of the Board members shall take into
account the extent of effective participation of the member and his/her
commitment to performing his/her duties and responsibilities, including
attending the Board and its committees’ meetings and dedicating
adequate time thereof.

5- The Board shall carry out the necessary arrangements to obtain an
assessment of its performance from a competent third party every three
years.

6- Non-Executive Directors shall carry out a periodic assessment of the
performance of the chairman of the Board after getting the opinions of the
Executive Directors, without the presence of the chairman of the Board in
the discussion on this matter, provided that weaknesses and strengths
shall be identified and a solution shall be proposed for the same in the best
interests of the Company.

7- The Board shall conduct an annual evaluation to measure the
independence of the independent member, and ensure that there are no
relationships or circumstances that affect or may affect his independence,
and the member shall inform the Board when any of the symptoms of
independence are achieved.

2.17. CoDE OF CONDUCT AND EXPECTATIONS FROM DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted Regulations of Conduct for Directors to promote
ethical and responsible decision making by the Directors. The Regulation
of Conduct embraces the values of honesty, integrity, excellence,
accountability and independence as per Article 83 of CMA Corporate
Governance Regulations.

The Directors have adopted the following Regulation of Conduct in

respect of the Directors’ behavior and in this regards, they shall:

® Acthonestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.
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®  Accept collective responsibility for the decisions of the Board.

® (ome to meetings on time and demonstrate assertive
communication skills in both speaking and listening.

®  Notengage in conduct likely to bring the Company into disrepute.

® Maintain sufficient detailed knowledge of the business and
performance to make informed decisions.

® The Board members will carry out their responsibilities to the
exclusion of any personal advantage.

® Board members should maintain the confidentiality of non-public
information about Nayifat or its activities or operations to which
they have access by virtue of their functions as Board members. If
Board members are required to disclose confidential Nayifat
information by law, they should inform the Chairman and the CEO

of any such requirement at the earliest possible opportunity.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The disclosure - a “Statement of Corporate Governance Practice” — shall
be made in the Company’s Board of Directors report. Such disclosure shall
be relatively brief but shall address at least the following points:

2.18. BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT

According to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors is required to
prepare a report for the financial year of the Company indicating the
balance sheet, the statement of profits and losses, a report on the
Company's operations and financial position and on the method it
proposes to distribute the net profit. The said report and documents must
be signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, and copies thereof
shall be placed at the disposal of the shareholders at the Company's head

office before the date set for the Annual General Meeting.

The annual report of the Board shall contain at least the following:

a. The composition of the Board and classification of each of its
members as an Executive Director, a Non-Executive Director or an
Independent Director.

b. Description of Board Committees, their functions, names of their
members and chairs of the committees as well as the number of
meetings of the committees.

c.  Detailed remunerations and compensations paid for Board members
(Directors) and five senior executives.

d.  Any punishment, penalties or measures taken against Nayifat by any

regulatory, supervisory or judicial authority.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

Byl 2¥ udzme D13 (e Auclozll Adogudl Joud @

Lojlodl Jlas¥l Slhleo 5Ldsly saxll cdsll § lelan¥l jo 0> @
el Sl 3

ASpad A oo Jlig O Jeizll (0 lglio § Lls¥laue @

8 3y o181y JleeS 8IS0 almanll 38 all e Llax)l  ®
Bl

e 6l sladal ae eeldssuney B10¥1 Lulzs slacl pllaaiu @

e Sloglall Lyw e Llasdl 8,l0¥ pudma slael e oy @
Lell ol 0Ser g Lplalos o Ldaiil ol iyl Jg> alall
olzme sl ca calls 1319 3,159) ulma @ 5L aillng @Sy
OplEl zge Sl @ Lyw Slaglas e iS5yl
o (gl gaaiall sy By15¥1 adzme sy ) eele s
RTCOPR-DSE JUN-{ B JY -3 | RPN

48,4l Sy (ye 7 Lad !
oelma 50,85 § - "I, WeSes Asles Olo" - Lt ok of o
L T2 g0 7 Lot 1 090 0oF g 45,201 3,1

Byl 3¥! sl 41,35.2.18

LW L) T35 iy 1 8,10¥) e e cpazy i, il allad Tady
o iy ylusdly Z LY Aeslds degendl Alill 4 msgs 4S8
2ol Gle s Lailay @ 2kl (g JUI La3S a9 45,01 lilec
oulzma ety Jed (0 8358l 3l lly upanll (e audarll oty oF g
il U9 prealidl Capas cums Lo ad gudss Oy 815¥)
Aol Bumaell ggiadl g Leandl samll bl Lo 35,40

ik Lo e BT e 819¥1 (el (ggiaad| o, Bl (ggims O cma

il punaS dilincl (oo gune S Carliats 8)I5¥1 pulzms (oS5
Jatus giine ol (ghudls s gine of

ollll slad g Lebael closely Leasllagg 5)15¥) (udma o) caimy
Ol olelbas) sacey

BISY pudes sLadd Zeghull clasgartly LS Jpolss
Omduaiad) HLS (e dues g

Aol gl opo laglidl 3oy Bisia clelyn] of leli of iligae g
Aslad ol 4u03; of dueidais

(30 - 83)

www.nayifat.com




Ul
NayiFat

e.

Names of any joint stock company or companies in which the
Company Board of Directors’ member acts as a member of its Board
of Directors.

Results of the annual audit on the effectiveness of the internal control
procedures of the company.

The provisions of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, which
the Company has notimplemented, the reasons for not doing so and
the likely time period for it to implement those provisions.
Significant plans and decisions, such as corporate restructuring,
business expansion and discontinuance of operations, shall be
outlined along with future prospects of the Company and any risks
facing the Company.

A description of the principal activities of the Company. If two or
more activities are described, a statement must be included giving for
each activity the turnover and contribution to trading results
attributable to the Company.

A summary, in the form of a table or a chart, of the assets and
liabilities of Nayifat and of Nayifat's business results for the last five
financial years or from incorporation, whichever is shorter.

A geographical analysis of the Nayifat's consolidated turnover and of
the consolidated turnover of its subsidiaries (if any) outside the
Kingdom.

An explanation for any material differences between the operating
results of the year and the operating results of the previous year or
any announced forecast made by the Company.

An explanation for any departure from the accounting standards
issued by SOCPA & IFRS.

The name of every subsidiary, its main business, its principal country
of operation and its country of incorporation.

The particulars of the issued shares and debt instruments of every
subsidiary.

A description of Nayifat's dividend policy.

A description of any interest, options, and subscription rights of the
Nayifat's Directors, senior executives and their spouses and minor
children in the shares or debt instruments of Nayifat or any of its
subsidiaries, together with any change to such interest and rights
during the last financial year.

Information relating to any borrowings of the Company (whether
repayable on demand or otherwise), and a statement of the aggregate
indebtedness of Nayifat and its group together with any amounts

paid by the Nayifat as a repayment of loans during the year. In case
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there are no loans outstanding for Nayifat, it must provide an

appropriate statement.

A description of the classes and numbers of any convertible debt

instruments, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by

Nayifat during the financial year, together with the consideration

received by Nayifa.

A description of any conversion or subscription rights under any

convertible debt instruments, options, warrants or similar rights

issued or granted by Nayifat. The number of meetings of the Board of

Directors held during the last financial year and the attendance

record of each meeting.

Information relating to any contract to which Nayifat is party and in

which a Director of Nayifat, the CEO, the CFO or any associate is or

was materially interested, or if there are no such contracts, Nayifat

must submit an appropriate statement. A description of any

arrangements or agreement under which a Director or a senior

executive of Nayifat has waived any emolument or compensation.

A description of any arrangements or agreement under which a

Shareholder of Nayifat has waived any rights to dividends. A

statement of the amount of any outstanding statutory payment on

account of any Zakat, taxes, duties or other charges with a brief

description and the reasons thereof. A statement as to the value of

any investments made or any other reserves set up for the benefit of

the employees of Nayifat;

Statements that:

i proper books of account have been maintained;

ii. the system of internal control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented;

iii. there are no significant doubts concerning Nayifat's ability to
continue as a going concern;

If any of the statements above cannot be made, the report must

contain a statement clarifying the reasons thereof;

If the external auditors’ report on the relevant annual accounts is

qualified, and the Authority requires additional information, the

Directors report must include such information as has been provided

to the Authority; and

If the Board recommends that the external auditors should be

changed before the elapse of three consecutive financial years, the

report must contain a statement to that effect and the reasons for

such recommendation.
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aa. In line with CMA Corporate Governance Regulations Paragraph (d)

of Article 17, the Company shall notify the CMA of the names of the
Board members and description of their memberships within five
business days from the commencement date of the Board term or
from the date of their appointment, whichever is shorter, as well as
any changes that may affect their membership within five business
days from the occurrence of such changes.

2.19. OTHER BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Directors performs its role as responsible for the affairs of the

Company and trustee of its assets through the following responsibilities:

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

a. In line with Articles 70 and 71 of Chapter Five of the Corporate
Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority, the
Board of Directors shall adopt an internal control system for the
Company to evaluate the policies and procedures related to risk
management, apply the provisions of the Company's corporate
governance rules, and comply with the relevant laws and regulations,
and this system shall ensure that clear standards of liability are
followed at all executive levels of the Company and that the
transactions of related parties are conducted in accordance with their
provisions and controls.

b. In order to implement the approved internal control system, the
Company shall establish units or departments for risk assessment,
management, and internal audit.

c. The Company may outsource to exercise the functions and
competencies of the assessment and risk management units or
departments, and internal audit, without prejudice to the Company's
responsibility for such tasks and competencies.

d.  The Internal Audit Unit or Department shall evaluate the internal
control system, supervise its application, and verify the extent to
which the company and its employees comply with the applicable
laws, regulations, instructions, and the company's policies and
procedures.

e. Ensure the application of appropriate control systems to measure
and manage risks, by developing a general perception of the risks that
may face the company and establishing an environment familiar with
the culture of risk management at the company level, and presenting
them transparently with stakeholders and parties related to the
company.

f. In line with Article 38 of the Executive Bylaws of the Finance

Companies Control Law issued by the Saudi Central Bank, the Board
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of Directors approves and updates the finance company's risk
management policy annually.

The Board of Directors periodically assesses the appropriateness of
the Company's conflict of interest policy and Code of Professional
Conduct.

The Board of Directors shall review the Company's policies and
procedures periodically at least once a year.

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Company's governance
framework is developed in line with the regulations of the Capital
Market Authority and the regulations of the Saudi Central Bank.

The Board of Directors shall ensure the development of documented
policies thatinclude compensation mechanisms, stakeholder dispute
resolution, customer and supplier relationships and the Company's
social contributions.

In accordance with Article 21(2) of the Corporate Governance
Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority, the Board of
Directors shall conduct an annual review of the systems, controls,
efficiency and general supervision of the Company's internal control
procedures. Although the Audit Committee will do so on behalf of the

Board, it will not relieve the Board of its responsibility in this regard.

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS

d.

In accordance with Article 22 of the Company's Articles of
Association, the Board of Directors shall appoint, at its first meeting,
from among its members, a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman, and may
appoint from among its members a Managing Director, appoint a
Chief Executive Officer from among its members or others, and
determine its powers, powers, entitlements and any other privileges.
The Board of Directors shall ensure that appropriate policies and
regulations are in place for the recruitment, development, retention
and remuneration of employees.

The Board of Directors reviews succession and replacement plans
and management development programs for the CEO and senior

management.

REPORTING:

d.

The Board shall ensure the integrity of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting system and also shall ensure compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to reporting the
Company'’s activities and results.

As per Article 21 of the Company’s Bylaws, the board of directors'
report to the ordinary general assembly includes a full statement

about what the board members got in terms of Remunerations,
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dividends, attendance allowance, expenses and other benefits

during the fiscal year.

c.  As per Article 47 of the Company’s Bylaws the board of directors
prepares at the end of every year an inventory for The company’s
assets and liabilities at that date, as well as preparing the company’s
financial Statememts, profit and loss accounting and a report about
the company’s activities and its financial position of the past year.
This manual includes the method suggested by the board for
distributing the dividends.

PROTECTING SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
The Board of Directors is committed to protecting the rights of
shareholders in away that ensures justice and equality between them, and
not to discriminate between shareholders who own the same class of
shares or prevent them from accessing any of their rights, and the
company will determine in its internal policies the necessary procedures
to ensure that all shareholders exercise their rights, including: (rights
related to shares, access to information, effectiveness of communication
with shareholders, election of board members, attendance and
recommendation of assemblies, and his/her share of dividends).
STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing the annual report and
financial statements of the company in accordance with the regulatory
requirements by the various regulatory authorities in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, such as the Capital Market Authority, the Saudi Central Bank
and the Ministry of Commerce, and the company must keep accounting
records and supporting documents to clarify its business, contracts and
financial statements at the company's head office, and the company's
financial statements must be prepared at the end of each financial year in
accordance with the accounting standards adopted in the Kingdom, and
these statements are filed in accordance with regulatory requirements.
EXTERNAL AUDIT
The Company shall entrust the task of auditing its annual accounts to an
independent, competent, experienced and qualified auditor to prepare an
objective and independent report to the Board of Directors and
shareholders showing whether the Company's financial statements
clearly and fairly reflect the Company's financial position and
performance in material respects.

The Ordinary General Assembly shall appoint the Company's auditor

upon the nomination of the Board of Directors, taking into account the

following:
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1) The nomination shall be based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee.
2) To be licensed and meet the conditions prescribed by the competent
authority.
3) His interests should not conflict with the interests of the company.
4) The number of candidates should not be less than two reviewers.
The auditor shall exercise the duties of care and honesty to the Company,
inform the Authority in the event that the Board of Directors does not take
appropriate action on the suspicious matters raised by him, and shall
request the Board of Directors to convene the Ordinary General Assembly
if the Board does not facilitate its work. He shall be liable for compensating
the damage suffered by the company, shareholders or third parties due to
errors made by him in the performance of his work, and if there are several

auditors and they participate in the error, they shall be jointly liable.
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THIRD SECTION: NAYIFAT BOARD COMMITTEES

The formation of committees in the Board supports ensuring the
effectiveness of decision-making to achieve the company's objectives in
accordance with the best practices and specialized technical standards,
assisting the Board in performing its tasks and responsibilities,
contributing to the effectiveness of performance and reviewing and
monitoring the company's business on a regular basis, and the Board of
Directors appoints the members of the committees, whether from inside
or outside the Board, and the use of these committees does not exempt
the Board from its responsibilities, and the nature of operations and the
size of the company, in addition to the relative experience and
qualifications of the Board members, determines the number of
committees that the Board should form, and must be At least these
committees include: (Executive Committee — Audit Committee —
Nomination and Remuneration Committee — Risk and Credit Committee
— Sharia Committee).

3.1. EXEcuTIVE COMMITTEE:

Provide support and assistance to the company's management and work
side by side with it in order to achieve its objectives and implement its
main plans, policies and strategies, and reviews the proposed short- and
medium-term financial and operational business plans in line with the
company's approved long-term plans, and the committee reviews annual
budgets and operating and capital expenditures, reviews management
reports on legal matters of material importance and recommends to the
Board the necessary actions, monitors the company's performance and
requests explanations for any deviations or deviations from the approved
plans and budget, The Chairman of the Committee shall submit a report
to the Board on any important issue, and shall determine, after
consultation with the Chairman of the Board, the items that should be
included in the agenda of the Board, in addition to any topics that are not
within the competence of the other committees.

3.2. AuDIT COMMITTEE:

The Committee is responsible for monitoring the company's business,
verifying the integrity and integrity of its reports and financial statements
and the availability of internal control systems in them, and its tasks
include studying the financial statements and expressing an opinion on
them to ensure their integrity, fairness and transparency, in addition to
studying and reviewing the internal and financial control systems and risk
management in the company, studying internal audit reports and
following up the implementation of corrective actions for the

observations contained therein, controlling and supervising the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

SLayld) 8yl ulma oyl s eddl .3

cblual Geamil 51,8l 3L Auleld Gloss ulzell § olelll JiSaS @y
Bucluny dmamsill dgall pulally claldl Jasy lasg a5, 40
Lazlyag elo¥) 2dlas § dealudly ciloguns dole 2ol § ulmll
slael ety 8yl0¥) (o p5dsg Aalatin Ligay 45,401 Jlecl 4481509
olalll sl Llanadl Laad ¥y oyl ol pudaell J513 (0 6lge Ll
dl 48La] (S, 401 g clilaadl Aads suly cAildggne (o bzl
oedzmall iy @ oLl sie ulll slacl cdlages Auwdll Spl|
— e dalll) (81 e oLl sda (e 06Sh O g L LSCAS
— oLzl bl dumd — ISy ol d AN dumd — Aa L di!
Lo S oo B (b Lesdg (e y il el

| sl 3.1
G i Lis L Jeally 385,401 5,00Y susbadly peall @ouas
LS ettty Ll laly Lplaoliwy Lhalas Juaisy Lélaal Guans
Loy (6l Blaiagins 5 umd domall Adiiidlly AL JLacHl b a3
Lol yes Blll 0985 LS cBazall Jo¥ algls 38, 401 lalas ae oileny
By15¥1 5ylas a3y Allewl,Nlg Adaadl claadlly Lgiad! @bl
alehaWl pulmall (50539 Lymsd! dnaa¥l 13 Agslall dsludl oliy
o llyamsl of 29,5 (Y s bty 28,400 o151 Bl 39 el
Jo> edamell ya5 ouds L) sty (e Bueall slplly Lalasdd!
Gle ) 9rd) bl sty o sl ay sy cRage Apnd
e 055 Y aslsa 6 ) 2L el Jloel doz as Lzl

e R PSIIEADN R EY

e dizt 3.2
solanll dalsig aedlu (e 3azedlly (A8, 41 Jlael 248l pay dizelll (aizs
Ly Lol Jaiidy ol 2uls1s 2ul8; Aalasl 58139 L 2 @sl9allg
dl Ledladg Lellaes Lralis glesat Lol @ 611 ¢lly 2JWL @il gall
G oblell 8ol adlly ddsludl ,18,01 @las daxlieg dwlys il
Slelya¥l ddi Amliey sl Aaxlll las dwlsy 45,40
ala iy 1ol e 8l a¥ls 38,019 Lpd 83,191 il goeloll Aoyt
3153 (e Bamill S AN § Al Aan Ll Blaly eIl ax L
pods LS e Abgill allly Jlec¥l ool § Ladladg 2ol 5)lsll

(37 - 83)

www.nayifat.com




Ol Ull
NayiFat
performance and activities of the internal auditor and the internal audit
department in the company, to verify the availability of the necessary
resources. It also recommends to the Board the nomination, dismissal,
determination of their fees and evaluation of their performance, after
verifying their independence, reviewing the scope of their work and the
terms of their contract, in addition to reviewing the results of the reports
of the regulatory authorities, verifying that the company has taken the
necessary measures in this regard, and verifying the company's

compliance with the relevant laws, regulations, policies and instructions.

3.3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Committee is concerned with preparing a clear policy for the
remuneration of the members of the Board, its committees and the
executive management, reviewing it periodically and evaluating its
effectiveness in achieving the objectives envisaged thereof, taking into
account in that policy the following of standards related to performance,
disclosure and verification of its implementation, and recommending to
the Board of Directors the remuneration of members of the Board of
Directors, committees and senior executives of the company in
accordance with the approved policy, and the Committee also proposes
clear policies and criteria for membership in the Board of Directors and the
executive management, and recommends to the Board of Directors to
nominate members for it, It also reviews the structure of the Board of
Directors and the executive management and makes recommendations
regarding the changes that can be made, and coordinates with the Human
Resources Department to develop a replacement and succession plan and
policy, and ensure that the executive management adheres to it, As well as
recommending the appointment of leadership positions in the company,
in addition to annually verifying the independence of independent
members, the absence of any conflict of interest if the member is a
member of the board of directors of another company, developing job
descriptions  for executive members, non-executive members,
independent members and senior executives, identifying weaknesses and
strengths in the board of directors, and proposing solutions to address
them.

3.4. RISK AND CREDIT COMMITTEE:

It is responsible for developing a comprehensive risk management
strategy and policies commensurate with the nature and size of the
company's activities, verifying their implementation, reviewing and
updating them, determining and maintaining an acceptable level of risks

to which the company may be exposed, verifying that the company does

not exceed it, in addition to verifying the feasibility of the company's
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continuation and continuing its activity successfully, identifying the risks

that threaten its continuation, supervising the company's risk
management system, evaluating the effectiveness of systems and
mechanisms for measuring and following up the risks to which the
company may be exposed; Prepare detailed reports on risk exposure and
proposed steps to manage these risks, submit them to the Board of
Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on issues related to
risk management, The committee also oversees the company's credit
activities by reviewing policies, credit limits, customer classifications, and
ensuring compliance and effectiveness in credit management.

3.5. SHARIAH COMMITTEE:

It is responsible for setting Sharia controls, issuing decisions and fatwas
related to the company's business, approving products and ensuring their
compliance with the provisions and principles of Islamic Sharia, approving
documents, records, contracts and correspondence, reviewing the current
contract formats, documents and applications in the company to consider
the extent of compliance with Islamic law, reviewing the products offered
by the company for the first time to ensure their compliance with the
provisions of Islamic Sharia, setting the basic principles for drafting its
contracts and documents, and informing the Board of Directors of
appropriate recommendations and procedures to correct the situation if
proven The Committee states that the Company has engaged in financing
activities that are not in accordance with the provisions and principles of
Islamic Sharia, and issues a comprehensive annual report to the Board of
Directors and the Saudi Central Bank showing the extent of compliance
with the principles of Islamic Sharia through the reviewed transactions,

and informing the Central Bank of cases where non-Sharia compliant

businesses are not dealt with effectively or appropriately.

(For more information on the tasks and responsibilities of the committees

emanating from the Board of Directors, you can refer to the charters of the

committees approved by the Board of Directors, except for the Charter of the

Audit Committee and the Charter of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee, which are approved by the General Assembly upon a proposal from

the Board of Directors, and the work charter of each committee clarifies the

controls and procedures of its work, its tasks, the rules for selecting its members,

how to nominate them, the duration of their membership, their remuneration,

and the mechanism for appointing its members temporarily in the event of a

vacancy in one of the committee's seats, As the fifth section of these regulations

explains the mechanism of supervision and control.)
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3.6. Criteria for the formation of committees:

1.

When forming committees and appointing its members, the Board of
Directors shall take into account that the formation shall be in
accordance with general procedures set by the Board, including
determining the mission of each committee, the duration of its work,
the powers vested in it during this period, and how the Board of
Directors shall control them, and the committee shall inform the
Board of Directors of its findings or decisions transparently, and the
Board of Directors shall follow up the work of these committees
regularly to verify the exercise of the work entrusted to them.

Each committee shall be responsible for its work before the Board of
Directors, without prejudice to the responsibility of the Board for

such actions and for the powers or authorities delegated to it.

The number of committee members should not be less than three
and not more than five.
The chairmen of the committees or their members must attend the

general assemblies to answer the shareholders' questions.

The company shall notify the Authority and the Saudi Central Bank
of the names of the members of the committees and their
membership within five working days from the date of their
appointmentand any changes thereto within five working days from
the date of the changes.

The committees shall study the topics that concern them or that are
referred to them by the Board of Directors and submit their
recommendations to the Board to take a decision thereon or take
decisions if authorized by the Board to do so.

The committees may seek the assistance of experts and specialists
from inside or outside the company within the limits of their powers,
provided that this is included in the minutes of the committee's
meeting with the name of the expert and his relationship with the
company or the executive management.

A sufficient number of non-executive directors should be appointed
to committees concerned with tasks that may give rise to conflicts of
interest, such as ensuring the integrity of financial and non-financial
reports, reviewing related party deals, nominating for board
membership, appointing senior executives, and determining
remuneration. The chairmen and members of these committees are
committed to the principles of honesty, honesty, loyalty, care and
concern for the interests of the company and shareholders and put

them ahead of their personal interest.
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9.

10.

11.

12.

Itis preferable that the member not be a member of more than two
committees.
The member must attend the meetings of the committee regularly -
and this may be using technical means -, and the attendance of half
of the members is required in order for the meeting to be valid, and
all decisions are taken based on the vote of the members and the
principle of the majority, and in the event of a tie votes, the side with
which the chairman of the committee voted is weighted, and the
opinion of the other party is recorded in the minutes of the meeting,
with confirmation that proxy voting is not allowed.
The member shall act in good faith, with the necessary care and
attention for the benefit of stakeholders, in addition to performing his
duties away from any external influence, whether from within the
financial institution "the entity subject to the supervision and
supervision of the Central Bank" or from outside it, and he must not
put his personal interests or the interests of his representatives over
the interests of the financial institution "the entity subject to the
supervision and supervision of the Central Bank", shareholders and
other stakeholders.

Each committee must have a secretary from among its members or

from outside them, preferably not to be the secretary of another

committee, and he must have the necessary qualifications, skills and

abilities that enable him to perform the following tasks — as a

minimum —:

a.  Documenting the meetings of the Committee and preparing
minutes thereof, taking into account the presentation of drafts
to its members, for comments before signing them.

b.  Prepare the reports of the Committee, submit them to the Board
and save them.

c. Inform the members of the Committee of the dates of the

meetings well in advance.
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SECTION FOUR: EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Without prejudice to the competencies entrusted to the Board pursuant to
the provisions of the Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations,
the Executive Management shall be responsible for implementing the
plans, policies, strategies and main objectives of the Company in order to
achieve its purposes.

The CEO has primary responsibility for the implementation of the strategy
set by the Board of Directors, is responsible for following up and managing
the day-to-day work of the Company, ensuring that the activities are in line
with the business strategy, risk level and policies approved by the Board,
and is responsible to the Board of Directors for achieving annual profits,
sales and achieving market share goals and objectives, and serves as the
primary link between the Company's management and the Board of
Directors and is responsible for ensuring that the Board is adequately
informed of the Company's performance and short, medium and long
challenges. The term faced by the company.

4.1. DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

1-Follows up and manages the daily work of the company and the conduct
of its activities, as well as the optimal management of its resources in line
with the company's objectives and strategy.

2- Implementing plans, policies, strategies, decisions, and main objectives

of the company approved by the Board.

3- Proposing the optimal capital structure of the company, its strategies
and financial objectives.

4- Proposing a comprehensive strategy for the company, master and
interim business plans, investment policies and mechanisms, financing,
risk management, and emergency administrative conditions management
plans and their implementation.

5- Proposing the company's main capital expenditures, owning and

disposing of assets.

6- Proposing the organizational and functional structures of the company
to clarify the role, authority and responsibility of the various positions
within the executive management, including the position of the Chief
Executive Officer, and submitting them to the Board for approval.

7- Propose the policy of professional conduct and work ethics in the

company, and submit it to the Board for consideration.

8- Proposing the remuneration policy granted to employees that includes
a minimum of types of remuneration, such as fixed, performance-related
or bonuses in the form of shares, and submitting them to the Board for

approval.
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9- Implement appropriate control systems to lead and manage risks by
developing a general perception of the risks that the company may face,
creating an environment familiar with a culture of risk reduction at the
company level, and presenting them transparently with the Board and
other stakeholders.

10- Managing the company's resources in light of its strategic plans and

objectives approved by the Board.

11- Implement internal control systems and controls and risk
management and supervision, including the implementation of a conflict
of interest policy, verify the effectiveness and efficiency of such systems,

and ensure and adhere to the level of risk approved by the Board.

12- Submit an annual report to the Board of Directors on the internal
control system and its implementation, to allow it to review the system
and ensure its effectiveness.

13- Keeping the Board informed and adequately informed of essential
matters, and providing it with the information it may need to carry out its
responsibilities and supervise and evaluate the quality of executive
management.

14- Understand and guide financial and non-financial structures at the
Group level, and have an appropriate mechanism in place to obtain up-to-

date information on Group structure.

15- Implement the Company's corporate governance rules effectively - in
a manner that does not conflict with the provisions of these Regulations -
and propose amendments when needed

16- Implement policies and procedures that ensure the company's
compliance with the laws and regulations and its commitment to disclose

material information to shareholders and stakeholders.

17- Proposing and developing internal policies related to the business of
the Company, including specifying the duties, competencies and

responsibilities assigned to the various organizational levels.

18- Preparing periodic financial and non- financial reports in respect of the
progress achieved in the business of the Company in light of the strategic
plans and objectives of the Company, and presenting such reports to the
Board.

19- Correctly applying the financial and accounting procedures, including

the procedures relating to the preparation of financial reports.

20- Providing the Board with the information required to exercise its
competencies and provide recommendations regarding the following:

a - Increasing or decreasing the share capital of the Company.
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b - Dissolving the Company before the end of its term as specified in its
bylaws or deciding the continuity of the Company.

c - use of the Company's reserves if they are not allocated for a specific
purpose in the Company's bylaws;

d - Forming additional reserves for the Company; and

e - The method for distributing the net profits of the Company.

21- Proposing a clear policy to delegate tasks to the Executive
Management and the method for implementing such policy; and

22- Proposing the powers to be delegated to the Executive Management,
the procedures for decision making and the period of delegation, provided
that it shall present periodic reports to the Board in respect of its exercise
of such powers.

23- Participating effectively in building and developing a culture of ethical
values within the Company.

The Executive Framework:

The CEO leads an effective executive team composed of key sectors,
classified as follows:

1- Regulatory and Supervisory Departments: Ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, such as Risk Management, Compliance,
Internal Audit, and Governance.

2- Business Departments: Responsible for achieving growth and
directing activities to serve the company's strategic objectives, such as
Sales and Marketing Management, SME, Credit Card, and ULEND).

3- Operational and Support Departments: Execute daily operations
and support business continuity, including departments such as
Operations, Collections, Human Resources, Information Technology,
Administrative Affairs, Customer Care, Financial, and Cybersecurity.

Each department has approved policies and procedures that define its
responsibilities and ensure business integration according to the best

regulatory and operational practices.

Here is an overview of each:

Sales and Marketing Department:

The Sales and Marketing Department is responsible for developing and
implementing strategies aimed at increasing sales and expanding the
customer base, and its tasks include market analysis, product
development to increase market share.

SME Department:

Itinnovates financial solutions that are compatible with the principles and
provisions of Islamic law to finance small and medium enterprises,
covering all activities in the economic sectors in the Kingdom of Saudi

Arabia.
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Credit Card Management:

It is responsible for issuing and managing credit cards for customers,
analyzing risks to ensure compliance with financial policies, as well as
developing offers to enhance customer loyalty.

Debt Crowdfunding (ULEND):

Oversees the debt crowdfunding platform (Yoland), ensures regulatory

compliance and promotes investment opportunities.

Credit Management:

Responsible for preparing preliminary evaluation criteria that potential
customers must meet to be eligible for facilities, in addition to conducting
credit competency analysis, and verifying its customers' compliance with
the requirements of the Saudi Central Bank, which reduces the potential
credit risk to which the company may be exposed.

Collection Department:

Follows an effective collection strategy to ensure a high recovery rate for
overdue accounts, ensure that payments are made regularly to maintain a
low loss rate, and the legal affairs team handles legal action against
defaulting clients andfiles cases before the competent courts to ensure the

company's rights.

Operations Management:

Oversees the implementation of all activities related to contracts, business
support and monitoring internal processes in accordance with cost and
performance considerations, to ensure the quality of services provided to
the company.

Customer Care Department:

It provides customer care services, meets their aspirations and resolves
any complaints efficiently and without delay, and the support team
provides after-sales services and conducts customer satisfaction surveys
to ensure that their expectations are met.

Financial and Treasury Management:

The Company's assets and liabilities are managed, prepares financial
reports and ensures compliance with accounting standards to achieve
financial sustainability.

Information Technology Department:

Manages technical systems, supports digital transformation, ensures
continuity of operations through technological solutions, assessing the IT
environment and updating the company's infrastructure on a regular

basis.
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Cyber Security Department:

Advanced cybersecurity strategies and comprehensive policies are
implemented to protect the company's and customers' data from cyber
threats. Astrict policy for managing IT assetrisks is also applied, along with
the analysis of threats and vulnerabilities, and the implementation of
response and recovery procedures and plans.

Data Governance Department:

Responsible for ensuring the accuracy, quality and security of data, which
contributes to improving decisions and reducing risks, its tasks include
setting policies, ensuring regulatory compliance, enhancing data security,
and improving its use in financial analysis and risk management, which
contributes to enhancing transparency, compliance with standards and
building customer and regulatory trust.

Human Resources Management:

It attracts qualified employees and gives high priority to training and
developing existing employees to achieve a high level of performance in
line with the company's vision, proposes performance-based rewards and
incentives programs for the company's employees, and supports plans to
recruit young national cadres in line with the Kingdom's Vision 2030 and
the company's strategic directives.

Department of Administration:

It is responsible for providing administrative support services to all
departments and divisions of the company, and its tasks include
supervising office services, managing assets and supplies, and ensuring
the provision of a suitable work environment that contributes to
improving performance efficiency and enhancing productivity.

4.2. CONTROLS OF INDEPENDENCE AND SEPARATION OF POSITIONS:
Independence and segregation of duties controls aim to strengthen
governance and prevent conflicts of interest through a balanced
distribution of powers, including separating decision-making,
implementation and control, clearly defining responsibilities, preventing
the concentration of all powers in the hands of one person, independent
internal control, enhancing transparency, and using technology to ensure
policy compliance, which contributes to improving efficiency and
reducing risks within the company.

An effective governance system requires independence and separation of
the position of the Chairman of the Board of Directors from the position
of the Chief Executive Officer, and this requires the availability of good
organizational and administrative structures and clarity of powers and
responsibilities between the main parties in the company, including board

members and executives, in addition to the development of a general
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control

framework through risk management, internal audit
management, compliance management, internal control systems and an
external auditor.

The separation of the roles of the CEO and Chairman of the Board is a
method of ensuring an appropriate balance of power, increasing
accountability and increasing the capacity of the Board for independent
decision making and therefore balancing between authority, functions
and their control.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of Nayifat will not hold any
executive position, including the position of Managing Director, CEO or
General Manager of the Company. The Chairman of the Board of Directors
shall be selected by a majority vote of the members of the Board of
Directors.

4.3. INDEPENDENT OVERSIGHT DEPARTMENTS AND THEIR ROLE IN
STRENGTHENING GOVERNANCE:

The Regulatory Structure

Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering and Combating the
Financing of Terrorism Department:

Itis an independent department that assumes compliance tasks, directly
linked to the audit committee and administratively linked to the CEO, and
the compliance officer is appointed by a decision of the Board of Directors
based on the recommendation of the audit committee and after obtaining
a letter from the Saudi Central Bank stating its non-objection to that, and
the compliance officer enjoys independence in performing the tasks
entrusted to him, and he may not exercise any other administrative tasks.
The Compliance Department is responsible for verifying the finance
company's compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and
instructions, identifying all compliance risks, dealing with them and
monitoring their developments. - Analyzing new policies, procedures and
processes and recommending actions to deal with related compliance
risks - Following a risk-based compliance program and including its
findings in its reports - Collecting compliance complaints, and preparing
written instructions for employees whenever needed - Preparing internal
policies and procedures to combat financial crimes such as laundering
crimes Funds and Terrorist Financing - Monitoring compliance with the
laws, regulations and rules of combating money laundering and terrorist
financing - Developing awareness of compliance issues and training
employees on its topics through periodic programs - Immediate reporting
to the Central Bank and the Audit Committee in the event of any violations

or violations.
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The Audit Committee shall submit its views on compliance reports to the

Board of Directors. The company provides the necessary technical support

to ensure that the compliance department performs its tasks to the fullest.

Internal Audit:

Itis an independent department that evaluates the internal control system,
and verifies the extent to which the company and its employees comply
with the applicable laws, regulations and instructions, and the policies and
procedures of Nayifat Finance Company, whether the operations are
managed by the company or from an external service provider, and the
Internal Audit Department must be enabled to view and obtain
information, documents and documents unconditionally.

The Internal Audit Department is directly linked to the Audit Committee

and administratively linked to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Internal Audit Unit or Department shall consist of at least one internal
auditor who shall be appointed by the Audit Committee and shall be
accountable to it. The composition and work of the Internal Audit Unit or
Department shall take into account the following:
1. lts employees shall have competence, independence and
appropriate training, and shall not be assigned any other work that
conflicts with the objectives of internal audit or violates its
independence.
2. The unit or department shall report to the Audit Committee, be
associated with it and be accountable to it.
3- The remuneration of the director of the audit unit or department
shall be determined based on the proposal of the audit committee in
accordance with the company's policies.
4. To enable access to information, documents and documents
without restriction.

a. The Internal Audit Unit or Department operates according to a
comprehensive audit plan approved by the Audit Committee, and
this plan is updated annually. Key activities and processes, including
those related to risk management and compliance management,
should be reviewed at least annually.

b. The Internal Audit Unit or Department shall prepare a written report
on its work and submit it to the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis at least. This report shall include an
assessment of the company's internal control system and the findings
and recommendations of the unit or management, and a statement

of the actions taken by each department regarding the processing of
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the findings and recommendations of the previous audit and any

observations thereon, especially in the event of lack of timely
treatment and the reasons for this.

c.  Thelnternal Audit Unit or Departmentshall prepare a written general
report and submit it to the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee on the audits conducted during the fiscal year and
compare them with the approved plan, indicating the reasons for any
breach or deviation from the plan, if any, during the quarter following
the end of the fiscal year concerned.

d.  The scope of the report of the Internal Audit Unit or Department shall
be determined by the Board of Directors upon the recommendation
of the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Unit or Department,
provided that the report shall include, in particular, the following:

1- Procedures for controlling and supervising financial affairs,
investments and risk management.

2- Evaluate the evolution of risk factors in the company and existing
systems to face drastic or unexpected changes.

3. Evaluate the performance of the Board of Directors and senior
management in the implementation of the internal control system,
including determining the number of times the Board has been
notified of control issues (including risk management) and the
manner in which it has addressed these issues.

4. Failures in the application of internal control, weaknesses in its
application, or emergencies that have affected or may affect the
financial performance of the Company, and the procedure followed
by the Company in addressing such failure (in particular the
problems disclosed in the Company's annual reports and financial
statements).

5- The extent to which the company adheres to internal control
systems when identifying and managing risks.

6. Information describing the company's risk management processes.

Risk Management:

It is an independent department that is directly linked to the Risk and
Credit Committee as well as administratively linked to the CEO, and the
Risk and Credit Committee must submit its views on risk management
reports to the Board of Directors.

The Risk Department analyzes and monitors risks (credit risk, market risk,
term cost price risk, risk of asset mismatch with liabilities, currency
exchange rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, state risk, legal risk,

reputational risk, technical risk) in addition to all risks that are mentioned
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by the Saudi Central Bank, and develops appropriate procedures to

identify, assess, manage, monitor, and report on risks, and develop them
in a comprehensive risk management framework that ensures the
achievement of identification. Early and comprehensive risk assessment,
risk assessment, immediate coordination with the Board of Directors, Risk
and Credit Management Committee, senior management and responsible

staff, and internal audit management if needed.

Governance Department:

The Board of Directors seeks to apply the highest standards of governance
followed and best practices, and to comply with all laws, rules, executive
regulations and circulars issued by the regulatory authorities, and seeks to
enhance the axes of effective governance through: (activating the
supervisory role of the Board of Directors - protecting the rights of
stakeholders - work ethics and transparency - measuring performance and
accountability - internal control)

In order to ensure compliance with the application of effective
governance, the Board of Directors has authorized the Director of
Governance — directly linked to the Board of Directors — to undertake the
task of setting governance rules for the Company that do not conflict with
the mandatory provisions issued by the regulatory authorities, and shall
monitor their application, verify their effectiveness, and amend them
when needed, and for this purpose he shall do the following:

1 - Verify the company's compliance with these rules.

2 - Review and update the rules in accordance with regulatory
requirements and best practices.

3 - Review and develop the rules of professional conduct that represent
the company's values, and other internal policies and procedures to meet
the needs of the company and consistent with best practices.

4 - Always inform the members of the Board of Directors of developments
in the field of corporate governance and best practices.

4.4. PROVIDING BOARD MEMBERS WITH INFORMATION:

The Executive Management of the Company shall provide the Board
members. the Non-Executive Directors in particular, and the committees
of the Company with all of the necessary information, details, documents
and records, provided that they shall be complete, clear, correct and non-
misleading, in due course to enable them to perform their duties and

obligations.
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4.5. REMUNERATION PoLICY:

In reference to the articles of the Company's Articles of Association (21,
23, 28) related to the remuneration of the members of the Board and the
committees, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee prepares the
remuneration policy for the members of the Board of Directors,
committees and executive management of Nayifat Finance Company and
approves it by the Board of Directors and the General Assembly of
Shareholders, and its aim is to set clear and specific rules and standards
that clarify to the Company's shareholders the procedures followed to
grant remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and members of
the committees emanating from the Board and the Executive
Management of the Company.

The executive management of the company also proposes a remuneration
and Incentives policies that is granted to employees, which includes a
minimum of types of remuneration, such as fixed or performance-related
bonuses or those granted in the form of shares, and the policies are
approved by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Nomination Committee.

The remuneration policy takes into account the following:

1- Consistency with the company's strategy and objectives.

2-To provide remuneration for the purpose of urging the members of the
Board of Directors and the executive management to make the company
successful and develop itin the long term, such as linking the variable part
of the remuneration to long-term performance.

3 -To determine the remuneration based on the level of the job, the tasks
and responsibilities entrusted to the occupant, academic qualifications,
practical experience, skills and level of performance.

4 - Consistency with the size, nature and degree of risks of the company.
5 - Taking into account the practices of other companies in determining
remuneration, while avoiding the resulting unjustified rise in
remuneration and compensation.

6 - To aim to attract, maintain and motivate professional competencies,
while not exaggerating them.

7 - To prepare in coordination with the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee when new appointments.

8 - Cases of suspension of the payment of remuneration or its recovery if
itis found that it was decided based on inaccurate information provided
by a member of the Board of Directors or the executive management, in
order to prevent the exploitation of the employment situation to obtain

undue bonuses.
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9 - Organizing the granting of shares in the company to the members of
the Board of Directors and the executive management, whether itis a new
issue or shares purchased by the company.
DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATIONS
A -The Board shall:
1 - Disclose the remuneration policy and the method by which
remunerations of the Board and executive management are determined;
2 - Provide an accurate, transparent and detailed disclosure in the Board
report on the remunerations granted to the Board members and Executive
Management, directly or indirectly, without any omission or misleading
information, and whether these were in cash or other benefits of any
nature. In case they were shares of the Company, the value of the shares
is the market value on the due date;
3 - Explain the relationship between remunerations granted and
applicable remuneration policy, highlighting any significant deviation
from such policy
4- Adescription of the necessary details with respect to the remunerations
and compensations granted to each of the following, separately:

a. Board members;

b. five Senior Executives who have received the highest remuneration
from the Company, provided that the chief executive officer and chief
financial officer are among them.

c. members of committees.

d. The disclosure in the Board of Directors' report shall be in accordance

with the tables attached to the CMA’s Governance Regulations.
(For more information - you can refer to the company's articles of association, the
remuneration policy approved by the General Assembly of Shareholders, as well as the
policies of benefits, compensation and incentives included in the policies and procedures

of the Human Resources Department approved by the Board of Directors).
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SECTION FIVE: SUPERVISION AND CONTROL MECHANISM:

The Board of Directors shall form committees and the executive

management of the Company, organize their work, control and supervise

them, and verify their performance of the tasks entrusted to them, and for

this purpose:

Approving the organizational and functional structures of the
company to clarify the role, authority and responsibility of the various
positions within the executive management, including selecting and
appointing the company's CEO, supervising his work, appointing the
director of the internal audit unit or department, dismissing him and
determining his remuneration, selecting senior executives, ensuring
that there is an appropriate policy to replace a qualified alternative to
work and possessing the required skills, and developing succession
plans for the company's management.

Develop a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies
commensurate with the nature and size of the company's activities,
and supervise their implementation and review annually, taking into
account linking the level of risks that the company wishes to bear in
aspecific period of time with the company's strategy and capital plan.
At the beginning of each year, the Board shall establish a specific
timetable for receiving reports from committees and internal and
external auditors, and from Control functions, and shall ensure that
the mechanism for preparing, collecting and submitting reports is
sound and consistent with approved internal policies, including
timely submission to the Board.

Follow up and monitor the work of the committees regularly to verify
the exercise of the work entrusted to them, and each committee must
inform the Board of Directors of its findings or decisions
transparently, and the committees issue their annual reports, which
contain a summary of their work during the year and the meetings
held and the most important recommendations and decisions issued
by them, and the minutes of the committees' meetings are shared and
reviewed in the meetings of the Board of Directors periodically.
Setting performance standards for executive management consistent
with the company's objectives and strategy, reviewing and evaluating
it, by reviewing and discussing the company's performance reports
and results periodically in the meetings of the Board of Directors.
Analyze the extent to which performance is consistent with strategic

plans and specific objectives.
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Review internal and external audit reports, compliance and risk
reports, and governance reports to ensure transparency and
accountability, and to make corrective decisions when necessary to
enhance performance and reduce risks.
Establish effective channels of communication between the Board, its
committees and the executive management, hold periodic meetings
with the executive management to discuss the course of work and its
obstacles and problems, and review and discuss important
information about the company's activity.
Determine clear powers for each of the Board, committees and
executive management through the adoption of a written and
detailed policy specifying the delegated powers and a table
explaining those powers, the method of implementation and the
duration of the delegation, and the Board of Directors may request
periodic reports on the exercises of the delegated powers, and may
determine the topics on which it retains the authority to decide.
Evaluate the performance of board members and committees
annually and assign a third party to evaluate its objectivity, as well as
evaluate the effectiveness of the Board's work controls and
procedures, structure and composition, identify weaknesses and
make the required changes when needed, evaluate the effectiveness
of governance policies and procedures and practices, and determine
whetherimprovements or changes are needed. From the existence of
an effective system to evaluate the performance of employees of the
company at all levels objectively and systematically, specifically, the
performance evaluation of executive management must be built in
the long term, and not limited to the performance of one year only.

Appoint independent external auditors to evaluate financial and

administrative performance.

Promote a culture of accountability and transparency to ensure the

achievement of corporate objectives.

Develop the necessary administrative and financial policies for the

company and review and update them periodically and regularly to

keep pace with organizational changes, in accordance with the
following mechanism and procedures:

O During the fourth quarter of each year, the Governance
Department coordinates with all internal departments and
divisions of the company to initiate the periodic review process
of the company’s policies, manuals, and charters, in accordance
with a predefined timeline aimed at ensuring continuous

compliance and regular updates. The department follows up
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with the relevant stakeholders until the preliminary review

results are received. If the Governance Department receives
confirmation from the concerned department that no updates
are required and the current version remains valid, this is
documented in the final list of policies.

The Governance Department receives proposed updates from
the relevant departments in the form of comparison tables
showing the policies before and after the suggested
amendments. These are initially reviewed by the Governance
Department and subsequently shared with the Compliance and
Risk Management departments to ensure alignment with
applicable regulations, controls, and supervisory requirements.
The Governance Department coordinates periodic meetings
attended by the CEO and the heads of relevant departments to
presentthe proposed policy updates, explain their rationale, and
clarify their potential impact on the company’s operations.
Updated policies are submitted to the specialized committees of
the Board of Directors for preliminary approval, depending on
each policy's oversight reference. They are then presented to the
Board of Directors for final approval, or recommended for
submission to the General Assembly of shareholders when
necessary.

Amendments to the company’s internal policies and procedures
may also be made outside the annual review cycle in response
to significant developments, such as the issuance of new
regulatory instructions, changes in risk levels, or the need to
address findings from regulatory authorities or results of
internal and external audits. These amendments follow the
same approval procedures mentioned above, with
consideration given to a flexible and clear mechanism for urgent
updates. This mechanism defines the required steps,

responsibilities, and an expedited approval path to ensure

timely response while maintaining governance requirements.
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SECTION SIX: SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board shall ensure that the Company's corporate governance policies
protect the rights of shareholders and facilitate the exercise of their rights,
and contribute to providing effective channels of communication and
various means of communication with all shareholders of the Company,
and ensure that they are treated fairly, including minority shareholders, as
well as constantly urge them to participate in the Ordinary General
Assembly meetings and submit proposals related to the Company's
performance and the development of its operations.
The company must have specific procedures to ensure that shareholders
exercise their rights and obtain appropriate information without delay,
and these rights include: obtaining dividends, attending shareholders'
assemblies and participating in their deliberations, and voting on its
resolutions in person or using technical means, as determined by the
relevant regulations and instructions.
The company shall provide the Saudi Central Bank with a copy of the
minutes of the general assembly meetings within a period not exceeding
15 days from the date of its convening.
Key shareholders' rights include:
a. A Obtaining all relevant information that enables shareholders to
exercise their rights to the fullest periodically and without delay, in a

manner that does not harm the interests of the company.

b. Participation and voting in the ordinary general assembly meetings,
taking into account the topics that shareholders wish to raise in such

meetings.

c.  Discuss the topics on the agenda of the ordinary general assembly,
direct inquiries to the members of the Board and the chartered

accountant, and obtain a statement thereon.

d. Selection of Board members following the cumulative voting
method.

e.  Shareholders shall be provided with information on the venue, date
and agenda of the Ordinary General Assembly twenty-one days
before its meeting.

. Shareholders have the right to nominate and elect Board members,
inquire about their qualifications, experience and ability to perform
their work, discuss the size of the remuneration and financial
incentives received by Board members and senior executives, in
addition to their right to submit any inquiry to the Board regarding

any unprofessional practices and obtain a report thereon.
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6.1. FAIR TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

a.

The Board is obliged to seek shareholders’ rights protection to ensure
fairness and equality among them.

The Board and the Executive Management of the Company is obliged
not to discriminate among shareholders who own the same class of
shares nor prevent them from accessing any of their rights.

The Company shall specify in its internal policies the procedures that

are necessary to guarantee that all shareholders exercise their rights.

6.2. RIGHTS RELATED TO SHARES

All rights related to shares shall be guaranteed to the shareholder,

and particularly the following:

1.

10.

11.

to obtain his/her portion of the net profits which are to be distributed
in cash or through the issuance of shares;

to obtain his/her share of the Company’s assets upon liquidation;

to attend the General or Special Shareholders Assemblies, take part
in their deliberations and vote on their decisions;

to dispose of his/her shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, The Capital Market Law and their implementing
regulations;

to enquire and request viewing the books and documents of the
Company, including the data and information related to the activities
of the Company and its operational and investment strategy without
prejudice to the interests of the Company or breach of the Companies
Law and the Capital Market Law and theirimplementing regulations;
to monitor the performance of the Company and the activities of the
Board;

to hold Board members accountable, to file liability lawsuits against
them and appeal for nullification of the resolutions of the General
and Special Shareholders Assemblies in accordance with the
conditions and restrictions provided in the Companies Law and the
bylaws of the Company;

preemptive rights to subscribe for new shares issued in exchange for
cash unless otherwise specified in the Company’s bylaws orwhen the
Extraordinary General Assembly suspends the pre-emptive rights are
per Article (14) of the Company's Law.

to record his/her name in the Company’s shareholders register;

to request to view a copy of the Company’s articles of association and
bylaws unless the Company publishes them on its website;

Nomination and Election of Directors
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6.3. SHAREHOLDER ACCESS TO INFORMATION

il

The Board shall make available to the shareholder complete, clear,
accurate and non-misleading information to enable him/her to
properly exercise his/her rights. Such information shall be provided
at the proper times and shall be updated regularly.

The method used to provide information to the shareholders shall be
clear and detailed and shall include a list of the Company's
information that the shareholders may obtain. This information shall
be made available to all shareholders of the same class.

The Company shall use the most effective methods in
communicating with shareholders and shall not discriminate among

shareholders in respect of providing information.

6.4. COMMUNICATING WITH SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Board shall ensure communication between the Company and
the shareholders based on the common understanding of the
strategic objectives and interests of the Company.

The chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer shall
inform the remaining Board members of the opinions of the
shareholders and discuss these opinions with them.

No shareholder may intervene in the operations of the Board or the
work of the Executive Management of the Company unless he/she is
a member of its Board or its management team; or unless his/her
intervention is through the Ordinary General Assembly according to

its powers or within the limits and situations permitted by the Board.

6.5. ELECTING THE BOARD MEMBERS

a.

Upon calling for the General Assembly, the Company shall announce
on the Saudi Exchange “TADAWUL" information about the nominees
for the membership of the Board which shall include the nominees’
experience, qualifications, skills and their previous and current jobs
and memberships. The Company shall make a copy of the mentioned
information available in the Company's head office and its website.

Voting in the General Assembly shall be confined to the Board

nominees whose information has been announced as per paragraph

().

6.6. DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDENDS

a.

The Company’s bylaws shall prescribe the percentage of the net
profits to be distributed to the shareholders after setting aside the
reserves.

The Board shall establish a clear policy for the distribution of

dividends to achieve the interests of the shareholders and the
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Company as per the Company's bylaw.

c.  The shareholder is entitled to receive his/her share of dividends as
per the decision of the General Assembly in respect of the distribution
of dividends to shareholders or the Board resolution on distributing
interim dividends. The resolution shall specify the record date and
the distribution date provided that the resolution shall be executed
as per the Regulatory Rules and Procedures issued pursuant to the
Companies Law related to Listed Joint Stock Companies

d.  The announcement and distribution of dividends shall be in
accordance with the laws and regulations.

6.7. RIGHTS RELATED TO THE MEETING OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

General Shareholders Assemblies of the Company are competent in all of

its affairs. A duly-constituted General Assembly represents all

shareholders in exercising their powers in respect of the Company. The

General Assembly shall exercise its role in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations andand the

relevant regulations issued by the regulatory authorities and the

Company's bylaws.

AUTHORITY

The following issues fall within the authority of the General Assembly and

should be decided upon by a majority vote of shareholders participating

in General Assembly:

a. Theelection and dismissal of Board members;

b.  The approval of the remuneration for Board members;

c.  Upon recommendation of the Board of Directors, issue rules for
appointing the members of the Audit Committee and define the term
of their office and the procedure to be followed by the Committee.

d.  The delegation of the authority of the Director to a manager not a
member of the Board;

e. The approval of the annual reports, annual financial statements,
including balance sheet, profit and loss statements, statement of
cash-flows, and notes to the financial statements, as well as the
distribution of profits and losses based on the results of the fiscal
year;

f.  Thedeclaration and payment of dividends based on the results of the
fiscal year;

g.  Predetermined approval by the GA for interim dividends for next year
based upon meeting targets;

h.  The election of the External Auditors and approval of their fees;

i.  Approval of procedures for conducting the General Assembly;

j. The approval of the reimbursement of extraordinary or unusual
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items;

k. The approval of extraordinary transactions that are subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors in cases where the Board failed to
unanimously approve the transaction and transferred the authority
for its approval to the General Assembly;

I. Requesting an extraordinary inspection of the financial and
economic activities of the Company.

m. Any other issue stipulated by law or the Bylaws.
n.  Approval of related party transactions.
ANNOUNCEMENT OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY
In line with Article 13 of the CMA Corporate Governance Regulations the
date, place and agenda of the General Assembly shall be announced at
least 21 days prior to the date thereof; the invitation shall be published on
the website of the Exchange, the Company's website and The Company
may invite the General and Special Shareholders’ Assemblies to convene
using methods of contemporary technologies.

THE ORDINARY OR ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMBLY

This is the General Assembly of shareholders that is held on an annual

basis. Itis called the “Ordinary” General Assembly or the “Annual” General

Assembly. In this General Assembly, the shareholders review the Board’s

annual report and discuss the Annual Financial Statements.

Once the Financial Statements are approved and the dividend, if any has

been declared, the General Assembly may choose to discharge the

directors, the Board Committee members and the external auditors. In
addition, it may also decide if necessary, whether the members of the

Board and the external auditors are appointed or reappointed. Other

points may also be included in the agenda for discussion or approval.

THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

An Extraordinary General Assembly must be called by the Board when the

Board wishes to ask the Company’s shareholders to approve decisions

related to:

a.  Amending the Company’s bylaws, except for amendments which are
deemed null and void pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Law;

b. Increasing the Company’s share capital in accordance with the
situations provided by the Companies Law and Its Implementing
Regulations;

c.  Decreasing the Company’s share capital if it exceeds the Company's
needs or in the event the Company incurs financial losses, in

accordance with the situations provided by the Companies Law and
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Its Implementing Regulations;

Resolving to form a consensual reserve for the Company as provided
forinits bylaws to be setaside for a specific purpose, and the disposal
thereof;

Resolving to maintain or liquidate the Company before the end of the
term specified in its bylaws;

Approving the Company's shares buy-back;

Issuing preferred shares or approving their buying, or converting
ordinary shares into preferred shares or converting preferred shares
into ordinary shares as per the Company's bylaws and the Regulatory
Rules and Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law related
to Listed Joint Stock Companies;

Issuing debt instruments or financing deeds convertible into shares,
and stating the maximum number of shares that may be issued
against these instruments or deeds;

Allocate Shares that are issued upon the capital increase or part of
them for the employees of the Company, and its affiliates or some of
them, or any of them;

Suspending preemptive rights of shareholders in subscribing for the
capital increase in exchange for cash or giving priority to non-
shareholders in cases as deemed in the interest of the Company if so

is provided for in the Company’s bylaws.

SHAREHOLDERS' ASSEMBLY

a.

The General Assembly of Shareholders is the supreme corporate
body of the Company. The General Assembly of Shareholders is a
special event for shareholders. It provides them with an opportunity
to participate directly in decision-making by voting on proposed
resolutions, regardless of the number of the Company shares they
own. The Company is aware of how important the General Assembly
of Shareholders is and encourages all of its shareholders to fully
exercise their rights at its Assembly through exercising the voting
rights.

The General Assembly holds an annual meeting every year. This
meeting is called the Annual Meeting of the General Assembly. The
Annual General Assembly gives the Board of Directors the
opportunity to discharge their duties regarding matters that need to
be decided at the General Assembly level by law or by the Bylaws, or

place matters before the General Assembly for its decision.

®  The Annual Meeting of General Assembly must be held annually

and at least within the six months following the end of the
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Company’s financial year; upon the request of the Board of
Directors.

All Meetings of the General Assembly other than the Annual
Meeting of General Assembly should be held as Extraordinary
Meeting of the General Assembly.

The date, place and agenda of the General Assembly shall be
announced at least 21 days prior to the date thereof; the
invitation shall be published on the website of the Exchange, the
Company's website and in a daily newspaper distributed in the
province where the Company's head office is located. The
Company may invite the General and Special Shareholders'
Assemblies to convene using methods of contemporary
technologies.

Nayifat will make arrangements to facilitate the participation of
the greatest number of shareholders, including, determination
of the appropriate time and place of the meeting. The Company
should provide the shareholders the opportunity to vote in the
General Assembly and should inform the shareholders about
the rules governing the meetings and voting procedures.

The General Assembly should convene upon a request of the
Board of Directors. The Board should invite a General Assembly
to convene pursuant to a request of the external auditors or the
Audit Committee or a number of shareholders whose
shareholdings represent at least 5% of the equity share capital.
The external auditor may invite the assembly to convene if the
Board does not invite the assembly within thirty days from the
date of the external auditor’s request.

In preparing the Annual Meeting of the General Assembly’s
agenda, the Board of Directors should take into consideration
matters General Assembly require to be listed in that agenda;
shareholders holding not less than 5% of the company’s shares
are entitled to add one or more items to the agenda upon its
preparation.

Shareholders should be entitled to discuss matters listed in the
agenda of the General Assembly and raise relevant questions to
the board members and to the external auditors, whether these
are covered in the agenda or not. The Board of Directors or the
external auditors should answer the questions raised by
shareholders in a manner that does not prejudice the company’s

interest.
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® Matters presented to the General Assembly should be
accompanied by sufficient information to enable shareholders
to make decisions.

®  Shareholders should be enabled to peruse the minutes of the
General Assembly; the company should provide the regulators
with a copy of those minutes within 10 days of the convening

date of any such meeting.

PARTICIPATING IN THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders can participate in the General Assembly either by
participating in person or through proxy.

Participating in person; In order to attend an Assembly in person, the
shareholder must hold shares of the Company which must be
registered in the Register of Shareholders on the date the company
issues the notice of the meeting.

Participating through Proxy a shareholder may participate and vote
in the General Assembly through proxy, i.e. having another person
attend and vote on the shareholder's behalf. In order to attend by
proxy, the shareholder needs to issue a proxy to another shareholder
or any person, other than a board member, member of management,
or an employee of the Company. A single proxy holder cannot hold
proxies for more than 5% of the Company’s shares unless they are
holding proxy for a group of related companies or one family or its
members.

The name of the person attending and identification / passport
number must be written on the proxy form and the proxy must
contain information specifying the meeting the proxy-holder will
attend on behalf of the shareholder.

Ashareholder may indicate his voting instructions on the proxy form.
He may indicate whom he wants to vote for, against or to abstain
from each agenda item which will be voted on during the Assembly.

If the shareholder does not fill out the boxes provided to indicate his
preference and send in a blank proxy form, the Company will

consider as if no vote has been cast by that shareholder.

6.8. SUBMISSION OF INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

The following information and documents should be made available
to shareholders prior to the Annual General Assembly Meeting:

a.  Thereportof the Board of Directors to shareholders;

b.  The annual financial statements, including the balance sheet,

profit and loss statement, statement of cash flows, and notes to
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the financial statements;

c.  Thereport of the External Auditors;

d. Information on proposed candidates for the position of the
Director;

e.  The draft of amendments to the Charter, if any;

f. The draft of the new version of the Charter, if any;

g.  Drafts of any internal documents of the Company if same have
been submitted for approval from the General Assembly;

h. The recommendations of the Board on the distribution of
profits, including the amount of dividends and the procedure for
their payment, and on the distribution of losses of the Company
based on the results of the fiscal year;

i.  Remuneration of the Board members

j- Information regarding the position of the Board of Directors and
any dissenting opinions of directors on each agenda item;

k. Any other information required by the Law, CMA, SAMA and
internal documents of the Company.

If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes the

election of the Board of Directors members, individual Director and

the approval of the External Auditors, information as to the existence
of the written consent of the candidates should also be provided to
shareholders.

If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes items

that can trigger redemption rights, the following information and

documents should be made available for shareholders during the
preparation for the General Assembly:

a. Thereport of the Independent Appraiser on the market value of
shares of the Company, the redemption of which can be
requested;

b. Information regarding the value of the net assets of the
Company; and

c.  The minutes (or an excerpt from the minutes) of the Board of
Directors’ meeting that determined the redemption price for
shares and indicated that redemption price.

If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes the

reorganization of the Company, the following information and

documents should be made available for shareholders during the
preparation for the Annual General Assembly Meeting

a. The basis or grounds for the terms and procedures of the
reorganization that is contained in the decision on the

consolidation, merger, split-up, divestiture, or transformation,
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or in the contract on merger or consolidation that is approved

by the relevant Board;

b. The annual reports and the financial statements of all
companies involved in the reorganization for the last three fiscal
years, or for all completed fiscal years if the Company was
established less than three years ago; and

c.  The year-to-date financial statements up to the quarter that

precedes the date of the General Assembly.

® Information and materials that will be submitted to the persons
entitled to participate in Annual General Assembly Meeting will also
be made available at the headquarters of the Company to facilitate
access to and familiarization of the same. Shareholders also reserve
the right, having provided prior written notice, to inspect the books
and constitutional documents of the Company at the head office.

® |Ifthe agenda of the Annual General Assembly includes the election of
members to the Board of Directors or the proposed External Auditors
of the Company, the candidates should be present when the General
Assembly discusses this issue with the exception of the external
auditors when their election is being discussed.

6.9. APPLICABILITY OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY RESOLUTION:

The resolution of the general assembly of a joint stock company shall be

effective from the date of its issuance, except in cases where the articles of

association, the company's articles of association, or the resolution issued
stipulate that it shall be effective at another time or when certain
conditions are met.

6.10. SUBMISSION OF INFORMATION TO CMA

O  The Company shall announce to the public the results of a General
Assembly meeting immediately following its conclusion and shall
grant the shareholders an access to the minutes of the General
Assembly meeting; and the Company shall provide the Authority
with a copy of such minutes within 10 days of the date of any such
meeting and provide the Saudi Central Bank with a copy within a
period not exceeding 15 days from the date of its convening.

O  The Capital Market Authority may request the Company to provide it
with any additional information or data it deems necessary to verify
compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Regulations issued by it.

O In line with paragraph (a) of Article 8 of the Corporate Governance
Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority, the Company
shall announce upon invitation to the General Assembly on the

Tadawul website information about the candidates for membership
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of the Board of Directors, provided that such information includes a
description of the candidates' experiences, qualifications, skills,
positions and past and current memberships, and the Company shall
provide a copy of this information at its head office and website.

In accordance with Article 65 of CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations, the Company shall publish the nomination
announcement on the websites of the Company and the Exchange to
invite persons wishing to be nominated to the membership of the
Board and The nomination shall remain open for a period of at least

one month from the date of the announcement.
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SECTION SEVEN: PROFESSIONAL AND ETHICAL STANDARDS

7.1. CODE OF ETHICS

The Board of Directors shall develop a policy of professional conduct and
ethical values that represents the values of the company and defines the
principles and standards that must be adhered to by the company's
employees in the work environment, to ensure proper professional
behavior, mutual respect and integrity in dealings, and this code aims to
promote a healthy and fair work environment, and is a reference in the
event of any abuses or unacceptable behavior, and takes into account in
particular the following:

1 - Emphasize on each member of the Board of Directors, the executive
management and the company's employees to exert the duties of care and
loyalty towards the company, and everything that would preserve the
interests of the company, develop and maximize its value, and put its
interests ahead of his personal interest in all cases.

2 - Representing the member of the Board of Directors of all shareholders
in the company, and commitment to achieve the interest of the company
and the interest of shareholders and take into account the rights of other
stakeholders, not only the interest of the group that elected him.

3 - Establishing the principle of commitment of the members of the Board
of Directors and senior executives to all relevant laws, regulations and
instructions.

4 - Preventing a member of the Board of Directors or a member of the
executive management from abusing his position for the purpose of
achieving his own interest or others.

5 - Emphasis on limiting the use of the company's assets and resources to
achieve the company's purposes and objectives, and not to exploit those
assets or resources to achieve private interests.

6 - Setting precise, tight and clear rules regulating the validity and timing
of access to the company's internal information in a way that prevents
members of the Board of Directors, executive management and others
from benefiting from it or disclosing it to any person, except within the
prescribed limits or permissible by law.

The most important elements of the Code of Ethics and Professional

Conduct:

Honesty and integrity:

« Commitment to honesty in all dealings.

+ Avoid conflicts of interest and disclose them, if any.
Mutual:

* Respect colleagues, customers and any third party.

« Non-discrimination on the basis of race, sex, religion or any other
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affiliation.

Confidentiality and Privacy:

 Maintain the confidentiality of company or customer information.
* Not to use the information for personal purposes or disclose it without
permission.

Compliance with laws and regulations:

* Respect the laws of the country and the rules of the company.
+ Avoid any illegal or unethical practices.

Justice and Responsibility:

* Treat everyone fairly and fairly.

« Take responsibility for professional actions and decisions.
Professional:

* Maintain a high level of professionalism in behavior and appearance.

« Striving for continuous development and performance improvement.
Transparency:

+ Clarity in procedures and decisions.

* Share relevantinformation in a timely manner.

Ethical Conduct Guidelines

A code of ethical conduct cannot provide solutions to every situation, but
it does provide a guiding framework that guides all employees in their
daily dealings, to ensure that all company activities are conducted with
integrity and transparency.

Senior management has an additional responsibility in fostering a culture
of ethical conduct, not only through policy development but also through
example. Clear and direct communication of behavioral expectations, and
a quick response to any queries or ethical concerns raised by employees,
fosters a work environment based on trust and mutual respect.

Executive management should view the ethical concerns raised by
employees as opportunities to improve the work environment and not as
threats or challenges to their authority.

The Company encourages all employees to report any ethical concerns

without fear, ensuring transparency and fairness in all transactions.

7.2. DISCLOSURE PoLicy

Without prejudice to the Listing Rules, the Board shall set forth in writing
the policies, procedures and supervisory rules related to disclosure
pursuant to the disclosure requirements provided for in the Companies
Law and the Capital Market Law, as the case may be, and their

implementing regulations, taking into consideration the following:
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1 - such policies shall include proper disclosure methods that enable the

shareholders and other Stakeholders to access the financial and non-
financial information pertaining to the Company’s performance and
information in respect of ownership of shares, and to obtain a
comprehensive view of the Company's position;

2 - Disclosure to shareholders and investors shall be made without
discrimination in a clear, correct and non-misleading fashion, and in a
timely, regular and accurate manner in order to enable shareholders and
other Stakeholders to exercise their rights to the fullest extent

3 - he Company's website shall include all information required to be
disclosed and any details or other information that may be published
through other disclosure methods. (Guiding)

4 - Reporting rules shall be established and shall describe the information
required to be disclosed and the method of its classification in terms of its
nature, and the frequency of its disclosure.

5 - The disclosure policies shall be reviewed periodically and their
compliance with the best practices and the provisions of the Capital

Market Law and its implementing rules shall be verified.

DISCLOSURE BY THE BOARD

The Board shall regulate the disclosures of each of its members and the
members of the Executive Management, observing the following:

1 - Maintaining a register for the disclosures of the Board members and
the Executive Management and updating it regularly based on disclosures
required as per the Companies Law, the Capital Market Law and their
implementing regulations;

2 - Making such register available for review by the Company's
shareholders free of charge.

7.3. ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board of Directors, its committees, senior management, and all
employees are responsible for understanding and adhering to the values
and standards outlined in the Code of Ethics, as well as the Company's
Corporate Governance Regulations. Senior management is accountable to
the Board of Directors, while the Board is accountable to the Company's
shareholders and regulatory authorities.

The oversight departments within the Company play a key role in ensuring
compliance with these values and standards by submitting inquiries,
distributing surveys, and issuing internal circulars to ensure that Company
policies are clearly understood and effectively communicated to all
employees.

The Company is committed to upholding the highest regulatory standards

and takes any violations or breaches seriously. Such infractions may lead
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to disciplinary actions, including termination of employment or removal
from the Board of Directors or its committees. Additionally, raising
awareness of the Company's values and standards is a shared
responsibility across all managerial levels to ensure full compliance with
the Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Regulations.

All employees are required to report any concerns regarding non-
compliance, lack of awareness of standards, or any violations of the
Corporate Governance Regulations by contacting the Compliance

Department, Internal Audit, or the Audit Committee.

7.4. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company’s commitmentto integrity begins with complying with laws,
rules and regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Directors,
executives and employees must have an understanding of the company
policies, laws, rules and regulations that apply to their specific roles. In the
event of uncertainty whether a contemplated action is permitted by law
or the Company's policy, advice and guidance should be sought from the
Compliance and Governance departments. The Board, Senior
Management, and employees are responsible for preventing violations of
laws and Regulations and for speaking up if they discover or know of any
possible violations.

The Company shall comply with all laws, regulations, directives, and
instructions issued by SAMA, the CMA, and any other regulations
applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including the Corporate
Governance Regulation, the Listing Rules, and the Companies Laws
among others.

7.5. CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Integral to the Company’s business success is our protection of
confidential Company information, as well as non-public information
entrusted to us by employees, customers and other business partners.
Confidential and proprietary information includes such things as pricing
and financial data, customer names/addresses, and financial information
and/or non-public information about other companies, including current
or potential supplier and vendors. The Company will not disclose
confidential and non-publicinformation without a valid business purpose
and proper authorization.

It is equally important that the Company respects the property rights of

others. The Company will not acquire or seek to acquire improper means

of a competitor’s trade secrets or other proprietary or confidential
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information. The Company will not engage in unauthorized use, copying,

distribution or alteration of software or other intellectual property.

board Members, committees, and all company employees must maintain
the confidentiality of non-public information regarding the company or its
activities, operations, or clients, which they may access by virtue of their
positions, and not disclose it by any means to anyone.

7.6. PROTECTION OF COMPANY'S ASSETS

Company resources, including material, equipment and information, are
provided exclusively for business only. Board Members, Senior Managers,
Employees and those who represent the Company are trusted to behave
responsibly and use good judgment to conserve company resources.
Managers are responsible for the resources assigned to their departments
and are empowered to resolve issues concerning their proper use.
Generally, Company equipment such as computers, copiers and fax
machines shall not be used in the conduct of an outside business or in
support of any religious, political or other outside daily activity, except for
company-requested support to non-profit organizations or other
functions approved by the management. Solicitation of contributions or
distribution of non-work related materials during work hours is
prohibited.

In order to protect the interests and assets of the Company and our
employees, the Company reserves the right to monitor or review all data
and information contained on an employee’s company-issued computer
or electronic device, the use of the Internet or the Company'’s intranet. We
will not tolerate the use of company resources to create, access, store,
print, solicit or send any materials that are harassing, threatening, abusive,

sexually explicit or otherwise offensive or inappropriate.

Sale of company assets

The Board of Directors is required to obtain the approval of the General
Assembly when selling the company's assets exceeding the value of (fifty
percent) of the value of its total assets, whether the sale was made through
one transaction or several deals, in which case the transaction that leads
to exceeding (fifty percent) of the value of the assets is considered the
transaction that requires the approval of the General Assembly, and this
percentage is calculated from the date of the first transaction made during
the previous twelve months. The competent authority may exempt certain

acts and acts from the provisions of this Article.
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7.7.SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY
The Ordinary General Assembly, based on the Board recommendation,
shall establish a policy that guarantees a balance between its objectives
and those of the community for purposes of developing the social and
economic conditions of the community.
Nayifat Social Responsibility policy intends to support economic
development that positively impacts the society. Encourage company's
action towards social responsibility programs for supporting country's
development and needy people.
®  Saudization Program
Nayifat continuously provides career opportunities for young
nationals and support Saudization program. Saudization is one of the
most important issues affecting the labor market; it is directly linked
to economic growth and sustainable development. In addition,
Nayifat provides career opportunities for female employees, the rate
of female employees growing on yearly basis. HR will maintain
saudizaton ratio as per SAMA policy.
®  Waving outstanding loan for Deceased/Disabled Customers
This program is designed to support the bereaved family members of
deceased/disabled customer's by waiving outstanding finance. A
committee (Corporate Social Responsible Committee) has been set
up to review the cases of deceased/disabled customers to take
appropriate decision on waving outstanding finance.
®  Wavingoutstanding loan for the customers who falls under legal
proceedings.
This program is intended to support customer who falls under legal
proceedings. Corporate Social Responsible Committee will review
the cases of customer who falls under legal proceedings.
®  Guidelines on processing deceased and disabled cases
This process aims describing the guiding steps while processing
deceased and disabled cases.
Representative  (Relative/Heir/Attorney-in-Fact) should submit
documentary requirements for deceased/disabled customers.
The required documents may vary case by case however minimum
three documents should be submitted out five documents given
below based on the merits of the cases.
a. Death certificate | Disabled certificate showing disability
percentage.
b.  Medical report stating the cause of death/disabled.
c. ClientID

d.  Legal heirs' letter
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e.  Police reportin case of accident causing death/disabled.
Original documents with photocopies should be submitted to the
Branch.

Customer service staff should verify and stamp photocopies with "Verified

against Original” and signs along with the representative.

Collection Department collects information about the customers due and

unpaid amounts and necessary information and reporting to the

committee members to seek appropriate decision.

®  Guidelines on processing customers who falls under legal
proceedings
Customer falls under legal proceedings should submit supporting
documents to prove subject cases. In case customer falls under
insolvency court order should be produced. Original documents with
photocopies should be submitted to the Branch. Customer service
staff should verify and stamp photocopies with "Verified against
Original” and signs along with the representative. Initial review will
be conducted by Collection Department, upon completion subject
cases will be forwarded to CSR Committee. Appropriate decision will

be taken by CSR committee upon completion of the final review.

(According to the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the

O ‘ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL
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Capital Market Authority, Article 85 "Social Work Initiatives" —

Guideline)

The Board shall establish programs and determine the necessary methods

for proposing social initiatives by the Company, which include:

1- Establishing indicators that link the Company's performance with its
social initiatives and comparing it with other companies that engage in
similar activities;

2- Disclosing the objectives of the Company's social responsibility to its
employees and raising their awareness and knowledge of social
responsibility;

3- Disclosing plans for achieving social responsibility in the periodical
reports on the activities of the Company's;

4- Establishing awareness programs to the community to familiarise them

with the Company's social responsibility.
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7.8. FAIR DEALING

Members of the Board and its committees, Senior Managers, and
employees shall deal fairly with the Company's customers, suppliers,
competitors, independent auditors, Shareholders, and one another
and shall not take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation,
concealment, abuse of privileged information, misrepresentation of
material facts, or any other unfair dealing or practice.

The work environment shall be an environment where everyone is
treated with dignity and respect. The Company is committed to
creating such an environment to bring out the full potential of each
person, which, in turn, contributes directly to its business success.
The Company is an equal employment employer and is committed to
providing a workplace that is free of discrimination of all types from
abusive, offensive or harassing behavior. Any employee who feels
harassed or discriminated against should report the incident to his or

her manager, human resources, or the Audit department.

7.9. WHISTLE BLOWING PoLicy

One of the essential tools to ensure transparency and promote good
governance within the company, as it aims to provide a safe work
environment that encourages employees and stakeholders to report
any violations or violations without fear of reprisals, by providing a
safe and confidential channel for reporting violations, and this helps
in helping to detect financial or administrative corruption or any
illegal behavior that affects the company or stakeholders, and the
policy covers all types of violations such as corruption, fraud, abuse
of power, Conflicts of interest, violations of laws and regulations,
compliance violations, etc., involving all employees, senior
management, directors, shareholders, stakeholders and suppliers.
All reports are treated with complete confidentiality, and the identity
of the whistleblower is not allowed unless absolutely necessary and
after his consent, and any form of retaliation or discrimination
against the whistleblower is prohibited, and those found to be
involved in retaliation face strict disciplinary measures.

Every employee of the company is the first line of defense to protect
the work environment and ensure compliance with the highest
ethical and legal standards. All employees are expected to report any
suspicious or illegal practices, whether emanating from other
employees, clients or any related party.

Failure to report or show indifference towards any illegal or unethical

activity exacerbates the problem, which can cause serious financial
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losses and affect the reputation of the company. Therefore, the

company encourages all employees to report any concerns related to
improper behavior through appropriate channels, whether to their
line superiors or to senior management, while ensuring that strict
confidentiality is maintained and whistleblowers are protected.

(For more information, please refer to the Whistleblowing Policy

approved by the Board of Directors)

7.10. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Dealing with Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties Transactions:
Without prejudice to the provisions of the Companies Law and lts
Implementing Regulations, conflicts of interest situations and Related
Parties transactions shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions

of Chapter 6 of the CMA Corporate Governance Regulations.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST PoLICY

The Board shall develop an explicit and written policy to deal with actual
and potential conflicts of interest situations which may affect the
performance of Board members, the Executive Management or any other
employees of the Company when dealing with the Company or other

Stakeholders. This policy shall include the following in particular:

1) informing Board members, Substantial Shareholders, Senior Executives
and other employees of the Company of the importance of avoiding
situations that may lead to a conflict between their interests and the
interests of the Company, and dealing with them in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations.

2) Providing examples of conflicts of interest situations that are relevant
to the nature of the Company’s activity.

3) Clear procedures for disclosing conflicts of interest in the activities that
may lead to such conflicts and obtaining authorization or the requisite
approval.

4) The obligation to constantly disclose situations that may lead to
conflicts of interest or upon the occurrence of such conflicts.
5) The obligation to abstain from voting or taking part in decision making
when there is conflicts of interest.

6) Clear procedures when the Company contracts or enters into a
transaction with a Related Party, this shall include notifying the Authority
and the public without any delay of that contract or transaction if itequals
to or exceeds 1% of the Company's total revenues according to the last

annual audited financial statements.
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7) Procedures to be taken by the Board when discovering that such policy
is violated.

AVOIDING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

a) Amember of the Board shall:

Each member of the Board of Directors shall abide by the duties of care
and loyalty, including, in particular, the following:

1 - Exercise his duties with honesty and integrity and within the limits of
the prescribed powers, and to put the interests of the company and
promote its success over his personal interest, and not to exploit his
position to achieve private interests.

2. Take or vote on decisions independently

3 - Exerting care, attention, care and reasonable and expected skill

4 - Avoid cases of conflict of interest, and disclose any interest he has
directly or indirectly in the business and contracts made for the company's
account.

5 - Maintaining the confidentiality of information related to the company
and its activities and not disclosing it to anyone.

6 - Not to accept any benefit granted to him by others in relation to his
role in the company.

b) Conflict of Interest, Competition and Exploitation of Assets:

1. Amember of the Board of Directors may not have any direct or indirect
interest in the business and contracts concluded for the company's
account, except with the authorization of the General Assembly. (Except
for works and contracts that are carried out according to public
competition, or that aim to meet personal needs if they are carried out
under the same conditions and conditions as the company with the
general dealers and contractors and were within the company's usual
activity)

2. Amember of the Board of Directors may not participate in any business
that would compete with the company or compete with the company in
any of the branches of the activity it engages, except with a license from
the General Assembly.

3. A member of the Board of Directors may not exploit the company's
assets, information or investment opportunities offered to him as a
member of its board of directors or offered to the company to achieve his
direct or indirect interest.

4- In the event that a member of its board of directors violates paragraphs
(1 and 2) of this Article, the company shall have the right to claim before
the competent judicial authority the annulment of the contract, oblige him
to pay any profit or benefit achieved for him from this, and claim

appropriate compensation.
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C) Each Board member is prohibited from:

1) Voting on a decision taken by the Board or the General Assembly with
respect to transactions and contracts that are executed for the Company's
account, if he/she has a direct or indirect interest therein.

2) Misusing or benefitting, directly or indirectly, from any of the
Company's assets, information or investment opportunities presented to
the Company or to him in his/her capacity as a member of the Board. This
includes investment opportunities which are within the activities of the
Company, or which the Company wishes to make use of. Such prohibition
shall extend to Board member who resigns to, directly or indirectly, use
investment opportunities that the Company wishes to use, which came to
his/her knowledge during his/her membership in the Board.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE

1- Upon becoming aware of any interest he has, whether directly or
indirectly, in the business and contracts for the Company's account, a
member of the Board of Directors shall inform the Board thereof, and such
notification shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting at its
meeting. Such a member may not participate in voting on the resolution
issued in this regard in the Board and the General Assemblies. The Board
shall inform the General Assembly upon its convening of the works and
contracts in which the Board member has a direct or indirect interest, and
shall attach to the report a special report from the Company's auditor
prepared in accordance with the auditing standards adopted in the
Kingdom.

2. If a member of the board fails to disclose his interest referred to in
paragraph 1 of this article, the company or any interested party may claim
before the competent judicial authority to annul the contract or oblige the
member to pay any profit or benefit achieved for him from this.

3. Liability for damages resulting from the works and contracts referred to
in paragraph 1 of this article shall be borne by the member who has an
interest in the work or contract, and by the members of the board of
directors when they default or neglect to perform their obligations in
violation of the provisions of that paragraph or if it is proved that such
works and contracts are unfair or involve a conflict of interest and cause
harm to shareholders.

4. Members of the Board of Directors opposed to the resolution shall be
exempted from liability if they expressly prove their objection in the
minutes of the meeting, and absence from attending the meeting in which
the resolution is issued shall not be considered a reason for exemption
from liability unless itis proved that the absent member was not aware of

the decision or was unable to object to it after becoming aware of it.
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DiSCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST BY THE NOMINEE

A person who desires to nominate himself/herself for the membership of
the Board shall disclose to the Board or the General Assembly any cases of
conflicts of interest, including:

1) having direct or indirectinterest in the contracts and businesses entered
into for the benefit of the Company in which he/she desires to be
nominated to the Board.

2) Engaging in business that may compete with the Company or any of its
activities.

7.11. COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

Without prejudice to Articles (27, 71) of the Companies Law, and in line
with CMA regulations, if a member of the Board desires to engage in a
business that may compete with the Company or any of its activities, the
following shall be taken into account:

1) Notifying the Board of the competing businesses he/she desires to
engage in and recording such notification in the minutes of the Board
meeting.

2) The conflicted member shall abstain from voting on the related decision
in the Board meeting and General Assemblies.

3) the chairman of the Board informing the Ordinary General Assembly,
once convened, of the competing businesses that the member of the
Board is engaged in, after the Board assesses the board member's
competition with the company's business or if he/she is in competition
with one of the branch activities that it conducts in accordance standards
issued by the Ordinary General Assembly upon a proposal from the Board
and published on the company’s website, provided that such businesses
are assessed on annual basis.

4) Obtaining an authorization of the Ordinary General Assembly of the
Company for the member to engage in the competing business.

Concept of the Competing Businesses

The following shall be deemed a participation in any business that may
compete with the Company or any of its activities:

1) The Board members’ establishing a company or a sole proprietorship or
the ownership of a controlling percentage of shares or stakes in a
Company or any other entity engages in business activities that are similar
to the activities of the Company or its group.

2) Accepting membership in the Board of a company, an entity that
competing with the Company or its group, or managing the affairs of a
competing sole proprietorship or any competing company of any form,

except the company’s affiliates.
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3) The Board member’s acting as an overt or covert commercial agent for

another company or entity competing with the Company or its group.

7.12. ACCEPTING GIFTS
No member of the Board or Senior Executives may accept gifts from any
person who has entered into commercial transactions with the Company

if such acceptance of gifts may lead to conflicts of interest.

7.13. DECISION EVALUATION RULE:

A member of the Board of Directors shall be deemed to have fulfilled his
duty in the resolution he has taken or voted on in good faith, if the
following is achieved:

a- If he has no interest in the subject matter of the decision.

b- If he takes note of the subject matter of the decision to the appropriate
extent in the surrounding circumstances according to his reasonable
belief.

c. If he firmly and rationally believes that the decision is in the interests of
the company.

The burden of proof to the contrary lies with the plaintiff. The decision
means disposing or not to dispose of a matter related to the company's

business.
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SECTION SIX: DEALING WITH MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS POLICY

8.1. DEFINITION:

®  Minority shareholders are those shareholders who represent a class
of shareholders that do not control the Company and hence they are

unable to influence the Company.

®  The purpose of this policy is to assure there is effective protection for
the rights and interests of all categories of shareholders as well as to
prevent any conflict of interests. The policy is intended to monitor the
interests of the shareholders and the pursuit of dialogue with respect
to corporate governance and ensure the equitable treatment of all
shareholders.

The Board of Directors is keen to ensure that the Company's governance

policies protect the rights of shareholders and facilitate the exercise of

their rights, and contributes to providing effective channels of

communication and various means of communication with all

shareholders of the Company, and ensuring that they are treated fairly,

including minority shareholders, as well as constantly urging them to

participate in the Ordinary General Assembly meetings and submit

proposals related to the Company's performance and the development of

its operations. It also seeks to ensure that shareholders exercise their rights

and obtain appropriate information without delay, including obtaining

dividends, attending shareholders' assemblies and participating in their

deliberations, and voting on their decisions in person or using technical

means, as determined by the relevant regulations and instructions.

To this end, Nayifat must comply with all legal obligations regarding

minority shareholder rights.

8.2. RESPONSIBILITIES

® The Board of Directors should examine issues coming from minority
shareholders; explain the norms of shareholder rights; carry out the
role of a go-between in disputes between parties to a corporate
conflict.

® The Board should supervise the implementation of Nayifat's
executive authorities of its information policy when dealing with the
issue of control of accessibility by minority shareholders to channels
via which information is disclosed. The Board of Directors should
draft recommendations on improving the communication activity,
openness and transparency, equality of rights for all shareholders
and for the timely receipt of the required information.

® The Board should carry out a preliminary examination of all drafts of
substantive corporate actions, with respect to protecting the rights of

minority shareholders and assuring extra measures guaranteeing
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that minority shareholders are provided with the opportunity to
influence the pursuit of these actions.

The Board should carry out a preliminary examination of issues
relating to the preparation and holding of the meeting of
shareholders. It should make recommendations on measures that
will assure extra guarantees for the exercise of rights of minority
shareholders. The Board, as represented by the majority of its
members, should attend the meetings of shareholders in order to
carry out a dialogue outside the obligatory rules of procedure of the
meeting.

The Board should, from the positions of protecting the rights of
minority shareholders, carry out the analysis of:

a.  Charter and internal documents of the company;

b. the existing legislation and the best practice of its application;

c.  leading norms of corporate governance;

d.  Draftlaws and decisions of regulating authorities.

The results of the analysis carried out should be formalized by

reports, conclusions and reviews.
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UPDATE CONTROLLOG

° This policy shall be reviewed and updated periodically in line with the developments in Ll 36,4 Jleel clyghs ” B8l Ly (290 N L.i\.-:-_.:j e siin C"‘J‘: °
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Nayifat's business and relevant regulatory changes. . Lol g el
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o All amendments made to the policy shall be numbered and dated in a sequential and

organized manner.
° The amendment number and date shall be included in the footer of each page of the
policy to facilitate tracking and review.
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®  The update date shall be placed next to the update number on every page of the policy. ol Ll as Gleal dadsiy Jrudl plisiul iy @

o The log shall be used and signed to ensure the credibility of the changes.

Policy Name V No. Date Prepared Reason of Change
Corporate
1.0 June 2018 CRO Development of Charter
Governance
Corporate Governance Manual 2.0 Oct 2018 CRO Enhanced In line with SAMA Rules Financing
Enhanced In line with SAMA Rules for Non Financing Companies and CMA Corporate
Corporate Governance Manual 3.0 Sept 2018 CRO
Governance Regulations
Major Enhancement in line with SAMA, CMA Corporate Governance, CMA Listing
Rules:
(] Overall Corporate Governance Section
. Board of Nayifat Section
Corporate Governance Manual 4.0 Nov 2018 CRO
. Board of Nayifat Committee and addition of Strategic Committee Section
L] General Assembly Section
L] Code of Conducts and Ethics Section
L] Dealing with Minority Shareholder section
L] Updated in line with CMA the amended Governance Regulation of May 15™
2019; namely;
) Conflict of Interest Section
Corporate Governance Manual 5.0 June 2019 CRO
o Competition with the Company Section
L] correcting some linguistically and grammatical errors
Correcting cross-references to the Company’s Bylaws and other Laws and Regulations
(] Updated in line with SAMA & CMA regulatory requirements
Corporate Governance Manual 6.0 Oct 2019 CRO/Compliance
. Updated New Board members
Corporate Governance Manual 7.0 Oct 2020 CRO/Compliance ° Annual Update
Corporate Governance Manual 8.0 Feb 2021 CRO/Compliance . Enhancement of Nomination &Remuneration
Corporate Governance Manual 9.0 Sep 2021 CRO/Compliance (] Nayifat Organization Structure
Corporate Governance Manual 10.0 Dec 2021 Board Secretary L] Updated in line with SAMA & CMA regulatory requirements
Corporate Governance Manual 11.0 Dec 2022 Governance (] Annual Update
. Annual Update in line with the new Companies Law & CMA regulatory
Corporate Governance Manual 12.0 Sep 2023 Governance
requirements.
L] Update in line with the new Companies Law & CMA regulatory requirements
Corporate Governance Manual 13.0 Oct 2024 Governance
& SAMA regulatory requirements
L] Update in line with CMA regulatory requirements & SAMA regulatory
requirements.
Corporate Governance Manual 14.0 April 2025 Governance
. Update in line with Observations of the SAMA's inspection team.
. Update in line with internal Audit (EY) Observations.
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